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To the Members of DMI Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinlon

1

2)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
(the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries togethar refarred
to as ‘the Group’) and its associate, as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprahensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statemant and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our informationrand according to the explanations given to us and based
on lhe consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries and an associale the aforesaid consclidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act') in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS‘) spacified under section 133 of the Act, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate, as at 31 March 2021, and their consolidated
profit {(including other comprahensive income}, consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes
in equlty for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3)

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Respongibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordanca with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('the ICAI'} and the relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we hava fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports refemred to in paragraph 16 of the Other Matter
seclion below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Emphasis of Matter — COVID 18

4)

We draw attention to Note 38 of to the accompanying financial statoments, which describes the
uncertainty relating to the effects of Covid-19 pandemic on the Holding Company’s operations as at
31 March 2021. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

%
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financla! Statements

Key Audit Matter

3)

6)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration
of the reports of the ather auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, and an associate
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statemants as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thareon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Holding Company relies upon information
processing systems for recording, processing,
classifying, and presenting the large volume of
transactions entered into by the Holding
Company. The Holding Company has putin place
IT General Controls and automated IT Controls to
ensure that the information produced by the
Holding Company is reliable. Also, during the
cumrent year, the management cared out
changes to the IT infrastructure and accounting
system to implement moratorium relief extended
during the year to the customers. Among other
things, the management also uses the
information produced by the eniity’s information
processing systems for accounting and the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial staterments.

The Holding Company’'s accounting and financial
reporting processes being dependent on
autornated controls enabled by IT systems
impacts key financial accounting and reporting
iterns such as loans, interestincome, impaiment
on loans amongst others. The controls
implemented by the Holding Company in its IT
environment determine the integrity, accuracy,
completeness and validity of data that is
processed by the applications and is ultimately
used for financial reporting.

Since our audit strategy included focus on entity's
information processing systems relevant to our
audit due to their pervasive impact on the
consolidated financial statements, we have
determined the use of informalion processing
system for accounting and financial reporting as
a key audit matter for the current year audit.

\V/

Use of information processing system for accounting and financial reporting

Our key audit procedures on this matter includex,
but were not limited, to the following:

a) Obtained an understanding of the Holding
Company's information pracessing systems,
IT General Controls and automated IT
controls for applications, databases and
operating systems relevant to our audit;

b) Obtained an understanding of the ¢hanges
that were made to the IT applications during
the audit period on account of moratorium
relief extanded to its custorners;

c} Involved IT specialists (auditor's expert) for
performance of the following procadures:

i) tested the IT General Controls around user
access management, changes to |IT
environment and segregation of duties
around program maintenance, security
administration and over key financial
accounting and reperting processes; and

i) tested the Holding Company's periodic
review of access rights. We salso tested
raqueasts of changes to systems for approval
and authorization

i} tested the automated controls like
interfaces, configurations and information
generated by the entity’s information
processing systems for loans, interest
income and other significant financial
statement items.

d) Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether IT general controls
and automated IT controls are designed and
ware operating effectively during the period
covered by our audit,
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Key audit matier | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected Credit Losses on loans (ECL) and implementation of COVID-19 relief measures
(Refer Note 3(m) for the accounting policy and Note 7.1 for the related disclosures

As at 31 March 2021, the Holding Company has
financial assets (loans} amounting to Rs.
31,413.61 million. As per Ind AS 109- Financial
Instruments, the Holding Company is required to
recognise allowance for expecled credit losses
on financial assets.

Expected credit loss cannot be measured
precisely but can only be astimatad through
use of statistics. The calculation of expected
credit losses is complex and requires axercise of
judgement around both the timing of recognition
of impaimment provisions and estimation of the
amount of provisions required in relation to loss
evanls,

The Hoalding Company has developed
customized madels to derive Key inputs used to
determine the amount of ECL such as probability
of default (PD) and loss given default {LGD). The
rasult from these models is then applied to the
exposure at default (EAD) to armive at the amount
of ECL. In the process of developing the ECL
models, a significant degree of judgement has
been applied by the management in respact of
following matters:

a) Staging of loans and estimation of behavicral
life and thereby determining the criteria for a
significant increase in credit risk.

b) Estimation of expected loss from historical
observations,

c) Estimation of losses in respect of those loans
which had no/ minimal defaults in the past.

d) Selection of macro-economic factors and
astimating their impact on ECL model; and

e) Estimation of the expected realizable values
of underlying collaterals.

Our audit procedures in relation to expected
credit losses were focused on obtaining sufficient
appropriate audit evidence as to whether the
expected cradit losses recognised in the
consolidated  financial  statements  were
reasonable and the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements made by the
management were adequate. These procedures
included, but were not limited, to the following:

a) obtained an understanding of the modet
adopted by the Holding Company including
key inputs and assumptions for calculation of
expecied credit losses including the impact of
COVID 19 on the assumptions and how
management calculates the expected credit
losses and the appropriateness data on which
the calculation is based;

b) tested the design and operating effectiveness
of the key controls over completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs and assumptions
considered for calculation, recording and
monitoring of the impairment loss recognizad;

¢) obtained the policy on moratorium and
restructuring of loans approved by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the RBI circulars and
ansured such policy is in compliant with the
requirements of the RBI circular;

d) evaluated the appropriatenass of the Holding
Company’s determination of significant
increase in credit risk in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard considering
the impact of COVID-19 on account of benefit
extended by the Holding Company to select
borrowers and the basis for classification of
various exposures into various stages.

8) As modelling assumptions and parameters
are based on historical data, we assessed
whether  historical experience  was
representative of current circumstances and
was relevant in view of the recent impairment
losses incurred within the portfolios.

f) tested the accuracy of inputs through

substantive procedures and assessed the
reasonablaness of the assumptions used;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Implemantation of COVID-19 relief measures

During the current year, RBI announced various
relief measures for the borrowers which were
implemented by the Holding Company such as
‘COVID 19 Regulatory Package- Asset
Classification and Provisioning™ announced by
the RBI on 17 Apnl 2020 and RBI circular on
‘Asset Classification and Income Recognition
following the expiry of Covid-19 regulatory
package” dated 7 April 2021 {collectively referred
to as ‘the RBl! circulars’), and “Resolution
Framework for GOVID-19 related Stress” (the
‘Resolution Framework') dated 6 August 2020,
which have baen collectively considered by the
management in identification, classification and
provisioning of (oan assets for impaiment.

The management has considered the impact of
COVID-19 on arriving at the provisions as at the
balance sheet date on account of significant
increase in credit risk on borowers given
additional support by the Holding Company which
were impacied due to GOVID-19. The basis of
estimates and assumptions involved in arriving at
the provisions during the year wara monitored by
the Holding Company periodically and
significantly depend on fulure developments in
the economy due to COVID-19 including any new
relief measures’ announcements by the RBI,

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the consolidated financial statements,
the degree of management's judgment invelved
and additional complexities involved in the
current year on account of ongoing impact of
COVID-19 and since the matter raquired our
significant attention to test the calculation of
expected credit losses, we have identified this
as a kay audit matter for current year audit.

We also draw attention to Note 38 of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements,
regarding uncertainties involved on the due to
oulbreak of GCGVID-19 pandemic with respect to
the measurement of expected credit loss on such
loan assets which are significantly dependent on
uncenain future developments, as the same is
fundamental to the understanding of the users of
consolidated financial statements.

g) developed a point estmate by making
reference to the expected credit losses
recognised by entities that carry comparable
financial assets;

h) tested the arithmetical calculation of the
expected credit losses;

i) on test check basis, tested the
roasonableness of estimates of expected
realizable values of underlying collaterals;

j) assessed the appropriateness and adequacy
of the related presentation and disclosures in
the accompanying financial statements in
acoordance with the applicable accounting
slandards and related RBI circulars and
Resolution Framework; and

k} obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they belisve
significant assumptions used in calculation of
axpected credit losses are reasonable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

information other than the Consolidated Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

7

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are respansible for the cther information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereen. The Annual Report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not exprass any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statemants or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstaternent therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govarnance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

8)

9)

10)

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134{5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statemants that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in¢luding its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally
acceptad in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The respactiva Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequale intermnal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant fo the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsibla for oversaaing the financial reporting process
of tha companies included in the Group and of its associate.

ﬂ, -’/
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Indepandent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidatad Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

11} Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the consclidated financial stalements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considared
malerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

12) As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exarcise profassional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or ermror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thosa risks, and obtain audit
evidence thal is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invelve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control;

= Obtain an understanding of internal central relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i} of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whather the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemant;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a
going ¢oncern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of gur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate
to cease to continue as a going concem;

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation; and

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the antities within the
Group, and its associate, to express an opinien on the financial statements. We are responsibla for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in
the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

13) We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intarmal control that we identify during our audit.

: ‘l'\l’
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14)

15)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemant that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of mast significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit malters, We describe these matters in our auditors report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the malter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

16)

17)

We did not audit the financial statements of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total aseets
of ¥ 345.97 million and net assets of ¥ 335.67 million as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of € 55 27
million and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 35.85 million for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements algo include the Group's
share of net profit (including other comprehensive income) of € 39.51 million for the yearanded 31 March
2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of an associale, whose financial
statements has not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and an associate, and our report in terms of sub-section {3} of section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, are based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with regpect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 were audited by
the predecessor auditor, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, who have expressed an unmadified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements vide their audit report dated 15 September 2620.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

18)

19)

Based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors, referred to in paragraph
16, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and assaciate, we rapor! that the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and associate company covered under the Act, since none of such companies is a public
company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not
applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries
and associate, we repor, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowladge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

\ /

%
Page 7 of 11
Charlered Aoountants Walker Chandioh & Co LLF Is regrsisred
with limited liabitily with identficallon
Ofiices i Bengaluny, Chandigarh, Cheanal, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kedkala, Mumbai, Hew Dedhi, Nosda and Pune mumbrer AAC-2085 and has its registersd

office al L=41, Connaught Clrcus, Owrer
Circle, Mew Delhi, 110001, lndia



DMI Finance Private Limited
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b}

c)

d)

e)

f}

g)

i)

i)

iv)

in our opinion, propar books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors;

the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statementls;

in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
saction 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the wrilten representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company, covered under the Act, none of the
directors of the Group companies and its associate company covered under the Act, are disqualified
as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act,

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate company covered under the Act,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’; and

with respect to the other matters to be in¢luded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries and associate:

the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group and its associate as detailed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements;

the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate did not have any long-term contracis
including derivative contracts for which thera were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2021,

there were no amounts which were required to be transferrad to the Invastor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company covered under the
Acl, during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

the disclosure requiremaents relating to holdings as well ‘as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant {o these
consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
S’ Regi;.iralion No:001076N/N500013

oo
\\& ,\
-~__, L £

Wi
-
Manish Gujral

Szriner

Lresabership No:105117

JDIN:21105117AAAAHI3936

Zizza. Mumbai
Z3te 03 September 2021
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Annexure 1
List of entitias included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
Subsidiary Companies

1) DM Capital Private Limited
2) DMI Management Private Limited

Associate Company

1) DM Altemnatives Private Limited
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DM! Finance Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of DMI Finance Private
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Independent Auditor's report on the internal financlal controls with reference to the consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
{‘the Holding Company’} and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together raferred
lo as ‘the Group’) and its associate as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, which is a
company covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, which is a company covered under the Act,
ara responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essaential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis
of India (the ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial conttrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordarly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and ermors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

The audit of internal financial controls with reference fo financial statements of the aforementioned
subsidiaries and associate, which are companies covered under the Act, and reperting under Section
143(3)i} is exempled vide MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated 13 June 2017 read with
corrigendum dated 14 July 2017. Consequently, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, tc the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial conirols with
reference 1o financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whelher adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of tha internal
fimancial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
nternal financial controls with referance 1o financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
weh internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
~aluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
recedures selected depend on the audiior's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
7v2ierial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

oy h

#'z telieve that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
2 2udit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding

| a;

—»Tigany, as aforesaid.
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure A (Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Referance to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accopted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial staterments in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements .

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Refersnce to Financial Statements

7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controfs with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procadures may

deteriorate.
Opinion
g In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is a company covered under the Act, has in all material

respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such controls
wara operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the intemal financial controls with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

“o* Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
~martered Accountants
=imn's Registration No:001076N/N500013

S ./
‘.'\J'-;/'
N A .

Hani;h Gujral
=ETner

wremvoership No:; 105117

—EN:2110511TAAAAHI3036
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DMI Flnance Private Limited
Consolldated Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unfess otherwise stated)

Notez As at Mareh 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

ASSETS

“ Bnandal assets
Z3zh and cash equivalents 4 2,533.91 1,212,569
2k balance other than cash and cash equivalents -] 267.21 15.20
Trade receivables 3 62,11 3296
—cans . 7 3141361 33,353.51
mstmeants 8 18,551.04 15,362 24
Zrer finangial assets ] 203735 569.73
Won- financial assets
Zrrant tax ascets 10 23247 170,07
Teferred tax assets [net) 11 633587 37874
>reperty, plant and equipment 12 326.92 387.64
~iangible assets 13 I2.80 7.55
2ther nan- financial assets 14 103.27 112.87
Lesets held for sale 15 189.85 189.85
TOTAL ASSETS 56,374.41 51,800.05
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
UABILITIES
Fnancial liabilitles
Trade payablas 16
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises 11075 78,68
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micra enterprises and small 195.23 164.55
enterprises
Debh securities 17 18,551.69 12,797.57
Somowings {other than debt securities) 18 1,423.48 3.001.28
ther financial liabMities 19 63533 488.87
HNon financtal Nahilities
Prowisions 0 57.51 38.54
ther non-financial liabilities 21 337.27 217.27
EQUITY
Equity share capltal 22 6,436.58 £,5492.04
Sther equity 23 28,626.57 19,330.35
TATAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 56,374.41 51,800.05

Summary of significant accounting pollcies and accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Balance Shect referred to In our report of even date

-
For Walkier Chandlok & Co LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013 DMI Finange Private Limited

Chartered Accountants

.

Manfsh Gujral shivashish Chatterjee Yuvrajg Chana ingh
Partrer {It. Managing Director) {it. Managing Director)

Membership Me. 105117 DIM: 02623460 DiN:i0peD1179
Place: New York Place! MEW MELWT
Date: September 3, 2021 Date: September 3, 2021

'I .I.I..
b o2
' " Krisha Ogpal D hi

(Chief cial\Officer) fpany Secratary)
M. No. A24788
Place: Mumbai Place: (R VRU M Place: G yRUGRAM
Date; September 3, 2021 Date: September 3, 2021 Date: September 3, 2021
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DM Finance Private Limited
Lonsolidated Cash flow statement far the Year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Yewr ended
_ Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit befosa tay IE0.61 1,393,058
Adustinents for

Depreciation and amaortisation 7312 7645
Net gain on fair vlue changes (587 60} 1435.83)
Impalrinent an financial instruments 284874 1,522,144
Interest expense for leasing arrangements a1.0z 27.3a
Effective interest rate adjustment for financial instruments 15.31 3280

Emplaves stack option expense 75.78 40,90
Operating profit before warklng capjta) thanges 2,823 48 2,873,91

Changes in working capital

(Increase| in financial and othar zssets {2,004.44) 11264720
Increase in financial and other Mabilities 20921 455 8%
Decrease In non financial Assers 6.59 12645
Increase In non financil labiliting 140 3316
Total of changes in working capital (1,648.62) (12,733.25)
Direct taxes paid net of refundg) 410,53 597.17

et cash flow generated from flosed in} aperating activities [A} 764,32 (10,456.46)

B Cash flow from investing activities-
Inflow {outflow) on account of

Purchase of Property, plant and equpment {30.64) 356, 44)
lincluding capital work-in-progress); intangible

assets

Sale of Property, plant and efuipment 5 106
Purchase of investimont {net] {2,991.‘15] {5,477.50)

Movement of fixed deposits (net) 252.0

et cash flow used in Investing activities i) (3, 273.81) {5.8?2,881

€ Cash flow from financing activitles:

Froceed from lssue of equity shares fincluding 979122 178608
share premium)
Procesds from debt securities SO0 21.303.00
Proceeds from hank barrowings 70t 00 230.00
Repaymeant of cash credit - (332 86)
Repayrnent of debt securities 14,750.00 14, 300.00)
Repayment of bank borrovangs {2,355, 33} 2,314, 54)
Lease pavments (55.18) {54.80)
MNet eaxh flaw generated from financing activitles [Ls] 3,830,71 17,066.88
-_____———;——.______________
Netincrease In cash and cash equivalents (A+Brc) 132122 737.5¢

Cazh and cash equivalents a< at the beginning of the year 1,212.69 47515
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,533,91 1,212.69

T Lamen
Noies:

1) Components of cash and cash equivalents As at March 31,2021 Asat March 31, 2020
Cash o hand .08 ata

Balance with banks
In current accounts 2,184,023

. 9B7.27

Incash eredit 360980 235.30

Total cash and cash equivalen|s 2,533.91 1,212.69
T =23381 000 1am36y

) Cash fow staterment has heen prepared under indirect method 35 setout Inthe IND A% 7 "Cash Flow Statement”,

1) For dizclosure of investing and finaneing ac tvities that do nat raquire the use of cash and cash equivalents, refar note A3
Summary of significapt aceounting policies and accompar 'ing notes are an integral part of the financial statement;
Thisis the Cash Flow Statement referred to in pur report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & (o LLP For ard an bahat of the Board of Directors of

Frrm Registration o, OOL076N/NSO00T 3 DM Finance Private Limited
Chariered Accountants
'a

Mafiish Gujral Shivashish Cj tterjen Yuvrajf Chanakya
Partner {It, Managin Director) ) {1t M
*Aembership Mo, 105117 : DIN: 32623460 (&1
Flate: N Zj) YoLK Placi ;
Date: September 3, 2021 Date: September 3, 2021
[ Mg |
N ! Krishan Gapal 5
o / (Chief Financial Ocl:f'i’(;L]/ {Co .
g J M. Mo (
Siace: Mumbai Place: a ORI € &pe) Place:. (U UG RAM

Zate: September 3,0 Date: e Q':' ef\3, 202] Date; September 3, 2021




DM Finance Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amount i g, In millions, unless otherwise statad)

= capital {refer pote 22

\ As at April 1,2019 Change during the year As at March 31,2020 Change during the year | ag at March 31,2021
m‘ MR ] e

¥ ir=fer note 23)

Reserves and surplus
Capital redemption
reserve

Statutory
reserve itfs 45.

IC of RBI At

Retained earnings

2,895.74
L022.22
{72.85)

16,646,06
1,022,22
{72.85)
33.54
77.26
1,564.75
54.37

TEEEEEd during the year
weserson of COPSs

T o enuity shares

ety reversed on CCDs/CCPSs
S meerve

7726
1,564.75

TEEE ncome for the year

TLes dyting the year
s zauity shares

8,947.58

* of Change in Equity referred to in OUF report of even date

L oup For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
= J07EN/NSO001 OMI Finance Private Limited

erjee
{Jt. Managin Director)
DIN: 02623460

Place: pye=p0 YoRK
Date: September 3, 2021 a

K pal
(Chief Financial Officer)
’ M. Ho Az4789
Place: (uRUGA MM Place: CryRucRAPA

& Oate: Septamber 3, 2021 Date: September 3, 2021



SA Finance Private Limited
%25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

i

Corporate information

OMI Finance Private limited {the “Holding Company” or “Parent Company”) is a Company domiciled in India as a
crivate limited company. The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India {'RBI') 25 a non-deposit accepting
ron-banking financial company ar NBFC-ND under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Company is engaged in
the business of providing leans to corporates and other iending activities. The Holding company together with its
subsidiaries Iisted in Note 2(c )(ii} are hereinafter tollectively referred to as the "the Group’.

~farmation on subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements is given in Note 2{C}{ii).
33sis of preparation

Statement of compliance in preparation of financial statements
7=z consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
~ziitied under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 [as amended from time to time).

Trzse financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
=7 Lirectors on September 3, 2021, )

Tz zonsolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through
2inar comprehensive income [FYOCI) instruments, other financial assets held for trading and financial assets and
zallities designated at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL), all of which have heen measured at fair valye.

Frasentation of financial statements

T=2 Croup presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reparted
zr2ts in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has
z wazonditionally legally enforceable rights to offset the recognized amounts without betng contingent an future
#o2nts Similarly, the Group offsets the income and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by

w2 =5 specifically,

“mnciples of Consolidation

Tmz consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and all its
Ziaries (from the date contrel is gained), being the entities that it controls. Control is evidenced where the
3ris exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
= those returns through its powar over the investee. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give tha
v iodirect relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity returns, The financial statements of subsidiaries
crzpared for the same reporting year as the parent company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
2l statements of subsidiaries to align the accounting policies in line with the accounting policies of the Parent
P

2nt Campany holds 100% shareholding in DM| Capital Private Limited and DMI Management Private Limited
2 are no contractual arrangements which rebut the control of the Parent Company over its subsidiaries.

Tu2 Zroupre-assess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that thera are changes
zr more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
27T subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expense

* Dussdiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from
:22 the Group gains control until the date the Oroup ceases to control the subsidiary,

7sohdated financial staternents are prepared using the uniform accounting palicies for like transactions and
'n o simitar circumstances and necessary adjustments required far deviations, to the extent possible unless
sTmareniz stated.

g szlone financial statements of the Holding Company and the subsidiaries have been combined on a line-hy-
i by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group
“aETles and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses,

@ “azacal statements of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
sm the effective date of acquisition, intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized income and
=i 27iang from Intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financia} Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

i} The consqlidated financial statements inclyde results of the following subsidiaries and assoclate of the Holding
Company, consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Finzncial Statements’,

Name of the Company

Country of Incorporation Consolidated ag

| Proportion of ownership as at
Il reporting date

DM! Capital Private Limiteg I 100.00%

| 100.00%

DMI Management Private Limited
DM Alternatives Private Limited

3. Significant accounting pelicies

(8) Use of estimates, judgements, and assumptions

and accompanying disclosyres and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reparting period. Estimates
ns a

In particular, information aboyt significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical ludgements in applying
accounting policies that haye the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the finaneial statements js

i} Impairment toss on financial assets
Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of futyre cash flows when
determining an impairment allowance for loans and advancas. In estimating these cash flows, the Group makes
judgments about the borrower’s financial situation, These estimates are hased on assumptions about 3 humber of
factors such as credit quality, lavel of arrears etc. and actual resyltg may differ, resulting in future changes to the
impairment allowance. Refer note 6.1 for further details of the increased uncertainty relating to the estimation of
impairment of loan portfolio due to the impact of the pandemic as at March 31, 2020,

ii) Business Model Assumption 2‘_
Classification and Measurement of financial assets depends on the resylts of the 5PP and the husiness model tests.
The Group determines the business model at 2 level that reflects how Broups of financial assats are managad

, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated, The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of
the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the Group's contin uous assessment of whether the
business madel for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate ang if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and S0 a prospective change to the classification
of those assets,

ifi} Defined employee benefit assets and liahilities
The cost of the defined benefit Bratuity plan and ather post-employment banefite and the present valye of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuatiops. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the tuture. These include the determination of the
discount rate, futyre salary increases and mortality rates. Due tg the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Alj assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv} Share Based Payments
Estimating fair value for share-based Payment transactions requires determination of the maost appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

ib)

(d)

i)

v

determination of the mast appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected lifa of the share option,
volatility and dividend vield and making assumptions about them.

v] Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sellan asset or paid to transfer 2 liability
in an orderly transaction in the principle {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. the exit price] regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot he measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF”) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
ohservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is raguired in establishing
fair values. Judgernents include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent cormprises cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits with original maturity of less
than three months held with bank, debit balance in cash credit account,

Recognition of income and expense

i} Interest income
The Group earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue bs recognized to the axtent that it is probable that the
economic henefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest revenue is recoghized using the effective interest methed (E1R). The effective interest method calculates the
amortized cost of 5 financial instrument and allocates the interest income. The effactive interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremeantal costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future
credit lossas,

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than
credit-impaired assets. When 2 financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 2', the
Group calculates the interest to the extent recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer cradit-impaired,
the Group reverts to calculating interest income.

-

Interest expense

Interest expense includes 1ssue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carr\'ﬁng value of the financial liability
and amaortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions
payable to arrangers and other cxpenses, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue
of & financial liability.

) Other charges and other interest
Overdue charges including penal interest is recognized on realization basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend,

—

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or cantains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
rlght to control the use of an identified asset for a periad in exchange for consideration.

Where the Group is lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

A




IA Sinance Private Limited
%tz to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Right-of-use assets

Tne Group recognises right-of-use atsats at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset
: available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
=sses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
zas¢ liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
23te less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the |ease
zzrm, The right-of-use assets are alse subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in

Zaction m (i) tmpairment of non-financial assets.

¢+ Lease Liability
4t the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the presentvalue of lease
c3yments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
s3yments) less any lease incentives receivable, and amounts expectad to be paid under residual value guarantees.

= calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
symmencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lzase is not readily determinable. After the
cammencement date, the amount of lease habilitics is increased to reflect the acoretion of interest and reduced for
1o lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of fease liahilities is remeasurad if there is a modification,
= zhange in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
7 anindex or rate used Lo determing such lease payments).

= Short Term Lease
The Group applies the short-term l2ase recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases {i.e., those leases that have a
2ase termaf 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain s purchase option). Lease payments
za shork-term leases are recognised as and when due,

- Praperty, plant and equipment {PPE) and Intangible assets

PPE

ZPF are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment Iosses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
zrice, borrowing cast if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
sandition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebate are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Zains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
zroceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
335e2ts is derecognized.

Intangible assets ”

atangible assets acquired separately are measured on inltial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
~tangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization ahd accumulated impairment losses, if any.
nternally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, ara not capitalized and expenditure
: reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Zains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
=.sposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

Dzpreciation on PPE is calculated on a written down value {WDV) basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
ves of the assets, prescribed under Schedule [1te the Companies Act, 2013 which also represents the estimate of
tne useful life of the asscts by the management,

=PE costing upto Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the yvear of purchase.

The Group has used the following rates 1o provide depreciation on its fixed assets.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

@)

Useful lives estimated by Rate of Depreciation
the management (years|

Furniture and fixtures 10 25.89%
Computers 3 £63.16%
Vehicles 8 31.23%
Office equipment S 45.07%

Leasehold improvements and allied office equipment’s are amortized on a straight-tine basis over useful life
estimated by management.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecistion of PPE are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on a WDV basis a period of five years from date when the assats are available for use.
The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial
year.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A proviston is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made,
Provistens (excluding retirement benefits) arg not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liability is disclosed for (1} Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly
within the control of the Group or (2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required te settle the obligation or 2 reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made,

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statemients.

e
Retirement and othet employee benefits >
Past-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defind benefit plans. Under a defined
contribution plan, the Group’s only obligation 1s to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions
if the fund does not held sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall
on the employae. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when
the employee provides service, Under a defined benefit plan,it is the Group's obligation to provide agreed benefits
to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Group. The present value of the defined
benefit obligations is calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The Group operates following emplo',res_: béneﬁt plans:

i) Employee Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payahle to the
provident fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the related service.

ii) Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Group provides for a Jump sum paymant to aligible
employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the (ast drawn salary and years of employment
with the Group. TherGroup's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for
based on actuarial valuation,

Met interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used 1o measure the defined benefit

obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. An actuarial valuation involvas making various assumgptions
|
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that may differ from actuai developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its leng-term rnature, these
liabitities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reperting date.

Re-measurament, comprising of actuarial gains and |osses, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or cradit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they ogcur, Re-measurements
are nat reclassified to profit and loss in subsequant periods.

i} Leaves

Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the em ployees. Leave entitlements can be availed
while in service of employment subject to restriction on the maximum number of accumulations. The Group
determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary at the Year end.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computatien and Disclasure Standards and
other applicable tax laws, The tax rates and tax laws used (o compute the amount are those that are enacted at the
reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or Joss is recognised outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive incame or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the
underlying transaction either in OCi or directly in equity,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability meathad on temporary differences hbetween the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carryfng amounts for financiai reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred taw assets are recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferrad tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date ang are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based an tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively anacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred-tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (rither in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OC! or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsetif 3 legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earning per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 an Earnings per share, Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributabla to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting year. hb =
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For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of sharas outstanding du ring the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Share based payments

Equity-settied share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based paymentsis expensed on a straight line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Share option outstanding account,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to wustomers, are inltially recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument, Loans and advances to
customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the customers. The classification of financial instruments at
initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the mahagement’s intention when acquiring
them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four"categories:
[

+  Debtinstruments/Loan portfolio at amortized cost

¢ Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI)

*  Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
{FVTOCI) .

Debt Instruments/Loan portfolio at amortised costs

A ‘debtinstrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

¢ The asset is held within 2 business model whose ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

*  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Business model: The business madel reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That is, where the Group’s objective is solely to callect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the sama is
measured at amortized cost or where the Group’s objective is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash
flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FAVTOCH. If neither of these is applicable {e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets
are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL,

NIREA
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SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (i.e. measured at amortized cost),
the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows reprasent solely payments of principal and interest
(the “Spp| test’), In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of maney, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic Jlending arrangement, Where the
contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are Inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, The amortizeq Cost, as
mentioned above, is computed using the cffective interest rate method,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive
Interest rate (EIR) method less impairment, Amertised cost is caleulated by taking inte account any discount or
premium on agquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognisad in the staterent
of profit and lass,

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described in Note:
Impairment of financial assets {refer note 3 (m)).

Debt lnstruments at FYOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FYTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and fair value thanges
relating to market movements selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPP|,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as wefl as at each reporting date at fair
value. Falr valye movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCD. However, the Group
recognizes interastincome, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain orloss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On deracognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC js reclassified from the
equlty to Statement of Profit and Loss. nterest earned whilst helding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
Income using the EIR methogd.

Equity investments and Mutual Sfunds
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are fheasured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
are classifled as held at FYTPL, Forall other equity instrements, the Group may make an jrrevoeable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is (frevocable,

-
If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair valye changes on the instrument,

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There {5 ng recycling of the amounts fram 0C to Statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment, However, tha Group may transfer the cumulative gain or lass within equity.

Financial Liabilities

Initiel recognition and measurement

value and in the case of loans and Botrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group's
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings incfuding bank overdrafts,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are sy bsequently carried at smaortized cost using effective interest method.

Vo &
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Redlassification of financial ossets and liabHities

The Group doesn't reclassify jts financial assets subsequent to their initjal recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line, Financiai liabilities are never
reclassified,

De-recognition of financial asset and financial liability

Financial Assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of 3 financial asset or part of a group of similar financiai assets) is de-
recognised when the rights to receive cash flaws fram the financial asset have expired, The Giroup also de-recognises
the financial asset if it has transferred the financtal asset and the transfer qualifies for de-racognition,

The Group has transferrad the financial asset if, angd only if, either:

= Mthas transferred its contractual rights to recejve cash flows from the financial asset
or

- Itretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full without
rmaterial delay to a third party under a ’pass-through' arrangement,

Pass-through afrangements are transactions whereby the Graup retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of a financial asset {the 'original asset’), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to ona or
more entities {the "eventyuat recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met;

= The Group has no obligation to pay amounts ta the sventual recipients unless it has tollectad equivaient amounts
from the original asset, excuding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plys
accrued interest at market rates,

- The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset othar than as security to the evantual recipients.

= The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventyal reclpients without material delay.

- The Group has transferred substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset
or * \

= The Group has nejther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred contral of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differonce between: {2) the carrying amount (measured at
the date of derecognition] and (b} the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new fiability
assumed) Is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account.

Financlal Liabilities

| HUKDAI
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{m) Impairment of financial assets
i) Owverview of principles for measuring expected credit loss {(“ECL”) on financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group is requirad to measure expected credit lasses on its financial Instruments
designated at amortized cost and fair value through other cornprehensive incoma. Accordingly, the Group is required
to determine lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since its arigination.
For other instruments, the Group is required to recognize credit losses aver next 12 month period. The Group has an
option to determine such losses on individual basis or collectively depending upon the nature of underlying portfolic.
The Group has a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as follows:

Stage |

These represent exposures where there has not been a sighificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group has assessed that all standard exposures {i.e. exposures with
n¢ overdues) and exposure upte 30 day overdues fall under this category. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group
measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months.

Stage Il
| Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified under
this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is witnessed after the overdues on an
exposure axcead for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Group classifies all exposures with overdues
exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The Group measures lifetime ECL on stage Il loans.

Stage Il

All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified
under this stage. Accordingly, the Group measures lifetime losses on such exposure. Interast revenue on such
contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amaortized cost {net of impairment allowance)
instead of the gross carrying amount. The method is similar to Stage 1) assets, with the probability of default set at
100%.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles for
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Methodology for calculating ECL
The mechanics of the ECL caleulation invalve the use of following key elements;

Probability of default {PD] - The probability of dafault is an estimafe of the Iilielihood of default over 3 given time horlzon
{12-month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset). PO estimation is done based on historical internal data
available with the Group. .

Exposure at default (EAD) — It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Group at a future date after considering
repayments by the counterparty befare the default event occurs. The outstanding balance as at reporting date is
considered as EAS by the Group. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate
requirement to estimate EAD,

Loss given default (LGD) — It represents-an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default
occurs, The Group uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified pools for the purpose of calculating LGD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Group analyses if there is any relationship between key
ecanamic trands like GDP, Unemployment rates; Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with
the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Group based onits internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD
rates by the Group may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the
methadology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably,
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ii)

Definition of default and Cure

The Group considers financlal instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage Il {credit—lmpaired} for ECL
calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments, The Group may also
classify a loan in Stage M if there js significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an
assessment that adverse markeat conditions may have a dispropartionately detrimental offect on the loan
fepayment, Thus, as a part of the gualitative assessiment of whether an instrument s in default, the Group also
considers a variety of instances that may indicate deiayin or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Group carefully considers whether the event shouid result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage N for ECL calculations ar whether Stage )is appropriate.

Classification of accounts into Stage Il is done when there is a significant increase in eredit risk since fnitial
recognition, typically when contractual repayments are more than 30 days past due,

it is the Group's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ ang therefore re-classified out of Stage Nl or
Stage l when none of the defauit criteria which resulted in their downgrade are presant,

Collateral repossessed

The Group's policy is to sell repossessed assets. Non-financial assets repossessed are transferred to asset held for sale
at fair value less cost to sell or principal outstanding whichever is lower at repossession date.

Write-offs

Financial-assets are written off either partially or in their entirety anly when the Group has stopped pursuing the
recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the decumulated Joss allowance, the difference is first treated
s an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the ErOss carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries
are credited to profit and loss account. '

Non-financial assat

The carrying amount of assets s reviewed at each balance sheet date if thera js any indication of impairment based
on Internal/external factars, An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the Ereater of the assets, net selling price and value in use, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta their presentvalie using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into actaunt, if available, If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation maode| fs used.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price at the Mmeasurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an
erderly transaction between market participants st the measurement date.

The Group's accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-financial assets and liabilities at fair
values (either on z Fecurring or non-recurring basis). Alsa, the fair values of financial instryments measured at
amortized cost are required to be distlosed in the said financial statements.

The Group is required to classify the fair valuation method of the finaneial / nan-financial assets and liabilities, either
measured or disclosed at falr valye in the financial statements, using a three leve! fair-value—hierarchv{which reflects
the significance of inputs used in the measurement). :

Accordingly, the Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances andg for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inpute,

Allassets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy described as follows-

T
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* level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are ungdjusted quoted prices from
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date, The Group
considers markets as active anly if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity
of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the
balange sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived
from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire peried of the instrument's life.

¢ Leve! 3 finandial instruments - include one or more unohservable input where there is little market activity for
the asset/liability at the measurement date that s significant to the measurament as 5 whaole,

{0} Dividend

The Group racognizes a (iability to make cash distributions to equity hoiders when the distribution is authorised and
the distribution is no fonger at the discretion of the Group. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the
date of approval by the sharehalders and interim dividends are recorded a5 a liability on the date of declaration by
the Group’s Board of Directors.

{p} Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances

initial recognition: .
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate, Nen-monetary items which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated In a
foretgn currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on reporting such monetary items of Group at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported i previous financial
statements, are recoghized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise. B
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& Cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Zash on hand 008 Q.12
Zadance with banks

- balance in cash credit accounts 369.20 225.30

- balance In current accounts 2,164.03 987.27

2,533.91 1,212.69

5 ®ank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Jeposit with original maturity of mere than 3 months but less than 12 months* 267.21 15.20
267.21 15.20

“ Deposits belng lien marked against corporate eredit cards and bank guarantee.

§ Trade receivables

-rsecured considered goad 62.11 39.96
62.11 39.96

-5 Impairment loss allowance
ol 62.11 39.96
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=
Asat March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Amortised cost Fair valug Total Amartisad cost Fair value Total
thraargh other thraugh other
comprehensive comprehensive
income income
4. Tgn loans
Zrezarate loans 13,764.95 142.83 13,907.78 12,461.25 120.7¢ 12,582.01
somer (oang 19,528.30 - 19,528.30 22,141.27 - 22,141.27
Tz iA] Gross 33,293.25 142.83 33,436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
=1 mpairment loss allowance 2,057,587 4.60 2,022.47 1,365,92 A.BS 1,369.77
o= {A) Net 21,275.38 135.23 31,413 .61 33,236.60 116,91 33,353.51
. a.
wr23 by tangible assets and intangible assets 13,764.95 142.83 13,907.78 12,461.25 120076 12,582.01
mrarirad 19,523.30 - 19,528 30 22,141.27 - 22,141.27
Tz (B} Gross 33,293,725 142,83 33,436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
-z mpairment loss allowance 4,017.87 4.60 202247 1,365.92 3.85 1,369.77
T=3 (B) Met 31,275.38 138,23 31,413.61 33,236.60 116.91 33,353.51
2 Fzotor
Slmosiactor - . . . - -
— 313,203.0% 142.83 3313808 3A4,602.52 120076 34,722,289
Tars () Gross 33,293.25 142.83 33,436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,733.38
' = ~pairment loss allowance 2.017.87 4.60 2,022.47 1,365.92 3.85 1,369.77
Tos IC) Net 31,275.38 138.23 31,413,651 33,236.60 116.91 53,393.51
3 33,263,25% 142.83 3343608 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
“ma (D) Gross 33,233.25 14283 33.436.08 34,602.52 120.76 34,723.28
#: mpairment loss allowance 2,017.87 4.60 2022 47 1,365.92 3.85 1,369.77
T3 (D) Net 31,275,328 138.23 31.413.61 33,236.60 116.91 33,353.591

znd receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or varishls interest ineome for the Holding Campany. The carrying value may be
=24 by thanges in the credit risk of the counterparties.

©=iorzd Lloans granted by the Holding Cownpany are secured by equitable mortgage/registered mortgage of the property and/for undertaking to ereate a secutlty
o7 3 personal guarantees and/ar hypothecation of assets andfor receivables andfar pledge of shares/debenture units and ather securlties,

© 7= -ziding Company has granted certain loans to employees amounting to Ks. 12,14 millions in corrent year {previous yesr: Re. 18 81 millions]

w wzirste loan portfolio ingludes non-convertible debentures of Rs. 2,385 18 millions {previous year: Rs, 2,426.45, millions)

g the year, the Holding Company invoked the shares pledged a5 security agalnst the Hon-performing laan glven to one of the borrower. The management of
== =z.zing Company intents to recover the outstanding dues from the said borrawer, The management of the Holding Company, if required to recover, shall sel|
T2 znaies and after recovering all the overdues on the loan, the Holding Company intends to refund the surplus (if any) to the said barrower,

\
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- wmprment allowance for loans and advances to borrowers

(Al Arount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)
ey of laans by stage distributian isas follaws:
T ————=ans v slege distribution is as fol)
March 31, 2021
‘Cacamar 10ans
= g e S anl e weea| o] el s
o ] R Y Y T
) I Y Y i

Stage 1 m

: 7 O Vs W T BT Ty e asezor]

== ~caimen loss allowance _ 63742 | 161886 | 15219 2624
S Saerving amount _ 43414 | 12,2932 m

—— 7% ol eredit substitutes and complilso convertible debentuies b stage distribution is 35 follows-
March 31, 2029
Sl cobvstitutes and compulsory convertible debentures
Stage 1 Stlage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2
2281527] 23064 35093 | 291415 376024 _mm
| 153936 w07 | tea05| z3em20

—=T =zamment loss allowance

e Seerying amount

S S eng Amount

161.35
— 7
2813

SRR Srying amaunt apening balance
—— =
Y Lals ariginated, MNetted off for repayments and loans

= —==d durihg the year
____—-_E_._v_“————.______‘

Tz fom Stage 1
TSrdme: o Stape 2
Sl om Stage 3
W CETEINE arnount closing Iﬁnce

e laans

1.081.39
. (2 78]

o e

TS Srrving amount opening balance
b N Y originated, Matted off far r&payments angd |ogns
3 during the year

=
Slage I Stage 2 Stage 3
s cerrying amount opening balance 226024 | |7 33em 2,599.24 mm_ 3,496.87

T B originated, Nelted off for repayments od laans 301.97 - 314.91 1352.18)
s o g —_m—m_
T Tam Stage 3 —— _

= o= om Stage-3 _ _——‘ __
S ey amownt tlosing balance 2.281.52 280.68 mm_mm




DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Stetements for the year ended March 31,200
(AN Amount in Rs, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

= a2 33 of changes In the £CL allgwan c&s Inrelation {5 consumer ang corparate tending fexcept Credit Substitubes any Compulsory Convartible Debentures) is, as follaws:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cawzner loans
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
s carying amount apening balance 206.57 142.56 200.78 G401 2936 1.26 161.36 191.38
~*= ¢z = ECL due tp change in ECL model rate | 18 25§ 10271 - 83.45 1036 99 . 11.35
v lisels originated, Metted cff for repayments and loans (101 99) 175.44) 154620 1,365.37 36275 161 13 237.21 768.10
S=mosesad during the year ]
Sarzras from Stage 12.07) 16225 - 159,18 {207.92) 3338 174 54 -
s from Stage 2 0z1 (10,73) - (10.51) 278 {54.23) 5044 .
o Stage 3 = Q.08 - 0.08 123 0.12 11,35} -
B oF . = 11,832.58)| [1,637.58) = - {33142)]  (331.42)
SERE CETYING amaunt clasing balance a2.47 32154 - 404.01 206.57 142,66 230.78 G40.01
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
—awwwrats loans
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stape 3 Total
S ceerying amount apening balapce i52.19 26,29 £51.34 729,77 110 52 3562 25019 396.43
—wrg= - Illdue g change in ECL model rate 195 60 2§29 483.89 3024 574 003 1611
Www Lzets originated, Netted aff for repayrnents gnd fcans 407 01 {22t) 404,80 24799 138 20 102 69 583.88
ams—e—es during the vear
St tam Stage 1 - - - - 1230.21} 1393 32523 -
~ e Sam Stage 2 26.24 [26.24) E - - {1s7.30) 16730 E
S S om Stags 3 - . . - 245 . {2.45) -
[ l—n T2 = - = = - £ {291 85} (291.65)
S g amount closing balance 28104 B 637.42 1,618.46 15218 26.24 551,34 T39.77
# F3.0s 2f changes in the ECL allowances of Investment, i relatron to Ciedit Substitutes and Compulsary Convertible Debentures is, 35 follows:
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
e -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Toral
W doagece opening balange 23.00 - 177,95 200,95 3545 45,20 80.75
e = 2 due to change in ECL model rate 280,92 6552 346.51 (3.25) - - 13.25)
S 7 cmw issets originated, natted off for repayiments and loans A0 79 005 @82 47.66 163.74 45 k4] . 123.45
= during the yaar
e mam Stage t {2.52) 252 - {177 95 - 17745 -
St = Stage 2 . . . s - . . E
e
et o Stage 3 - - * - X = - =
B e dosing balance 34336 257 250,29 595.12 2300 - 17795 20.95

-

Fzaratzterm loans |he Grolp ks in the business of extending secired loans mainly backed by mortgage of propetty (residantial
W v th2 above mentioned collateral, the Group hiolds othar types of collataral and credit enhancements, such as erosscollaterali
S e zuzrantees of parent/holding/group companies, personal guarantees uf Bromatersipartners/propristors,

i

OF commmercial).

sation on other assets of the borrower,

fiypothecation of recevables via escrow account and

S mmme coarse of business, thie Group dioes not nhysically repossess properties ar other assets,
= with legal mianz to recover due laan TEREYmEnts.

<= loan repayments are more than 96 days past due, repo

- ===z==d ol in the manner praseribed in

T
— —
A———

but recovery efforts are made on delinquent loans through collsetian

ssession of property

may be nitisted Under the provisions of the SAREAES] Act MI02, Re-possessed
the SARFAES) act e feciper outstanding debt




Dl Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amountin Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 rvssiments

Amortised cost Al fair value At fair value SulHedal Gthers Toal
Whrough profitand  through other
8 31 Marth 31, 202 loss comprehensive
neome
A
Saly instruments
Investments in Assaciates
Tauty thares in Oh Allernatives Privats Liowted * - 13973 125.73
Onhers
Sawily shares in DM Consunier Cred|l Privete Limiled 327 3.27 327
Iquily shares in Menally Bharat Engloesring Company Limited 2512 . 2511 512
Cauily shares in Flash Eleckronics Private Limiled - - 304 40 304,40 204,40
Touity shares in Alchemlst Asset Reconsiructioh Company Linkad 34 54 226 20 260,70 260.70
Mhytual funds
1 354,230 unlts In HOFC Ligued Fund - Qirect #lan - Girowth 7.bE3.34 766339 7.653.39
1 893,629 unils in 380 Lqu Fund Direct Growth &,100.55 6.100,5% 5, 10055
213,248 units in Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund . Plan B Growth 405 29 505,24 505.19
L BRG 137 units e X101 Prudential Liguid Fund Dmect Plan Growth 507 74 50774 S02.74
bl instrumenis
500 Urats of State Bank ol Indra Series - 1l non-convertible debenture 52675 S1E.75 526.75
T 500 Cormpulsory converlshle debentures i Flach Electronics India A2 47 82647 B26,497
“rvate Limited of face value Rs 100,000 each
Credit Substitutes I
472 ynits of Panchshes! Bulidtech Private Limited of face vale Rs 208 BS 7z 281.58 2B1.58
1000, 000 fully paid up
300 urts of Radlant Polymears Private Lemaled of face value Re LOg 12 505.12 - 596.12
1 006,000 fully paid up
529 units of Raheya leon Entertainmant Private Lited of face value 17292 1798 35100 35200
a5 1,000,000 fully pald up
0% unitz of 3aha bstate Develeper Private Linuted of face value A3 565 44 44 30 211.24 Bi1.24
100w, 000 fully paid up
210 units of Fantagy Buildwell Private Limited of {ace valwe Ry 4467 207 46,74 4574
1,000,000 (ufly paid up
her (nstruments
Sequnity receipts 1n Alchemist X Trust 194 11 . 19411 194,11
units of DI AIF Special Oppotlunaties Seheme - 11 41 1101 1101
“atal {A) Gross 2,151.2% 14,996.15 184903 15,016,43 129.73 12,196.16
-5 Impaweenent loss allowance AN 26 192 Bt 59512 595 12
“otal A} Het 1,748.99 14.996.15 1,675.17 18,421.31 120.73 18.551.04
W)
=.+zlmenls pirtside India - . - .
=a5iments in India 2,151 3% 14,99 15 1,859 03 19,016.43 174 3 19,146.16
Toal [B) Groas 2,151.23 14,396.1% 1.863.03 19,016.43 11873 19,146.16
255 lmparment loss allowance 40 26 . 192 26 595.12 - 50542
Total (8] Met 1,748.99 14,996.15 1E7517 18,421.31 139,73 1.3.5'51,:!4_

mwestment in Assooate i 3 per cquity accounting

wHes
1 Irtdt substitutas are part of financing sctivitbes
Wl Tafer aate 7] for movement of ECL and giose catrying amount ol €C0s and MCDs,

dx



DM Finance Private Limited
lidated Finanelal St for the year ended March 31, 2021,
{8 Ammount In /s, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the

Amortised cost A fair value At fair value $ubtotal Others Toral
theough profitand  through other
it Maech 31, 2020 lass eompeehansive
mepme
[ ]
Sty Imsirumens
—meants In Associstas
Spadty shares in ORI Alternatives Privabe Limied * - £3 48 %48
ey
Egamy shares in D] Consumer Credil Private Limited 3l 316 T.16
sty shares in McNMally Bharat Enginaaring Company Limited k] - 120 720
Sqamy shares in Flazh Elsetranics Private Limited 25000 250,00 50,00
Selry shares in Alchemist Asset Reconsiruction Company Limited 3450 226 20 250,70 26070
e s
L¥15.360 units in HOFC Liquid Fund - Ditect Man - Grawth Oplion 7482 61 74854 748264
=20 348 units In 5B Liguid Fund Dfrect Growth 4,564,861 &, 65461 4.664.51
& umits in Baroda Pioheer Liquid Fund - Mlan B Growth 036 036 0.6
el amshnnents
T3 Isory comyart lble deh ith Flash Electronics India 773,17 773.1% 17347
St Lirn lted of face value Rs 100,000 fully paid up
St Substitutes
&7, wats of Panchsheel Buildtech Private Limiled of face value R 214 94,58 358,20 36920
0,000 fulky paid up
Bl wnite, of Radiant Polymers Privale Limited of face value B A1 0F 541.08 541,08
- 30, 00 Fully patd up
2 anits of Raheja Icon Entartainment Private Umited of {ace value 16653 172 46 33899 338.99
B 3 200,000 fully paid up
57 wnits of Saha Estale Developer Privale Limited of lace vakue Ry 5209 152 14 504.23 = 504.23
= 330 000 fulby paid up
i wnits of Fantasy Buildwel| Private Limited of fare value Bs 7257 1357 FL57
300,000 Ju lby paid up
e Estuments
Sty receipts in Alchemist Xy Trust 135 00 . 155,00 195.00
vty of DMIAIF Sprecial Dppartunities Scherne 19 80 10,30 10,80
A - Gross 1,440,590 12,395.51 1.682.91 15,471.71 8943 15.563.19
A wpaiment [0ss allowance 104t 24 55 200,95 - 30045
N Nt 133459 12,349.81 1588 34 1527276 a%0.a8 15.362. 24
L ]
s outsids India - - . - E =
Wl in i ndia 1,440.99 12,399.81 168291 547371 45,48 15,563.14
Tt 8} - Grogs 1,840.99 12,349.81 1,682.91 1547311 19.48 15,563.19
. wepaurmarnd boss sllowance 10k 40 - a4 58 200 95 200 95
el N - Hat 1,334.59 1234981 1,588 36 15,272 76 A9 an 1536023

“wm——wel 0 ASsOCRLE i5 35 per equity accounting

- Segmie mpbEtULes are part of (inancing activities
o woie F 1 for movement of ECL and gross carmying amount of CCDs ahd MCDs

[HIRER




DMI Finance Private Limited
Noates te the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In milliens, undess otherwise stated)

s Finangial assets [atamortized cost)

As at
March 31, 2421

As at
March 31, 2020

=, deposit 1117 2104
o sy default guarantee recoverable 1,114 52 1481
Xty 901 35 S038R
Ao 2,032.35 569.73
et tax assets
==esmie Income-tax {net} 23247 154 51
232.47 15451
Zem=ad tax assets
Lesm—ed tax liability
¢ of linancial instruments 19.17 1383
sncein income recognition on uniealized gain on mutual fund Investments 72.79 13,25
T seferred tak Nabilities 91.96 33.08
Zermered tax asset
0 far employes benefits 14.47 Q.70
e in wtitten down vatue as per Companies Act ang Income-tax At 6.54 599
5 stment for processing lee 3081 =
v agamst leasaes 744 196
=zioment |oss allowance 40,90 366,54
~#=¢ fzrward of interest disallowed u.s 948 2567 2567
‘Bms deferred tay ascet 725.23 411.82
ot Zaferred Tax [Liability)/ Asset 633.87 373.74
#wement of deferrad tax assets As at Charged)/ credited  {Charged)/credited As at
March 31, 2020 to statement of 10 other March 31, 2011
profit and loss comprehensive
intome
D S
c ‘e of financial instruments 1383 4.39 106 1318
tetnincorne recognition on unrealized gain on mutual fund Investments 1835 5353 - e
=TT
o =n Far emplayee benehits 9./0 5.39 [0&1) 14,48
S Trenten written down value gs par Companies it and Incomestax Act 599 0.55 - 654
-stment For processing fee < 3081 5 1081
+ against leases 3.96 3.47 - 7.43
xent |oss allowancs 366 50 - 2/74.40 - 640,90
= =113 losses - A
o orward of interest disallowead under section 948 2EET - . 25.67
ol [ret) 378.7a 156.80 {167 533.87
wvement of deferred tav assets As at Charged)f credited  (Charged)feredited As at
March 31, 2019 to statament of to other March 31, 2020
prefit and loss comprehensive
income / other
equity
_EmiT s
companent on CCD and CCPS 54 58 154.58) - .
of financial instroments 4127 {344} {24 .00) 1383
"oz inincome recognition on unrezalized gain on mutual fund Investments 17.01 224 - 19.25
= for employes henefi: 508 310 0,52 270
- ¢ in watten down valug 95 per Campanies Act and Income-tax Act . 422 177 . 599
oo againgt leases 396 - 396
“oermantloss allowance 194 26 17164 . 366,50
©on41s lasses L3z (137 - .
= ‘oeward of interest disallowed under section 948 29.70 (4.03) - 2567
Z==l [net) 123,37 230.85 14.52 37E.74




DM Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consalidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amount in Rs, In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

s=aperty, plant and equipment

Furniture and Camputers Vehicles Qffice equipment Lease hold Right-of-use asset Total
fixtures impraverents
s carrying amvount
iadance as at Lpril 1, 2019 160 19.90 8.4l 15.71 7233 - 115.96
== fagsification adjustment (062} {3,33) - QEs - - {0.30)
L2ETIORS 0.50 972 . 15 6 B8 91 19391 32872
soosals - - [1.06} - - - {1.05)
Zadange as at March 31, 2020 148 1923 5.36 32 141,24 293,91 503.32
Lagions a41 252 - ad47 - - 9,40
szzasals - - - - - - -
#Mance as at March 31, 2021 1.83 37.81 5.36 37251 141.24 29391 512,73
| scosmulated depreclation
| Laance as at dpril 1, 2019 0.59 14.17 4.08 9.23 11.55 - 45.62
| +a=='agsification adjustment (0.03} {133 < .M - - {1.309
| I-2-ze for the year 013 742 @7l G468 12.40 45.24 7136
Trioosals - - (100 - - = {1.00}
Ldance a3 at Mareh 31, 2020 0.89 2026 37g 15.715 20,95 45.24 11568
“=2+ge for the year Q.21 73T Q.48 7Y 16.42 37,96 F0.12
zoosals x - - = = -
| Laiance as at March 31, 2021 0.90 28,03 429 33.02 46,38 #3.20 185.80
‘ st Block
1z March 31, 2020 0.73 9,03 1.57 16.29 111,29 243.67 387.64
| L March 31, 2021 0.93 9.78 1.9 9.43 94.86 210.71 326.92
|
|
‘ = mtangible asséts
Softwara Total
g Larfying aount
Sadance as at Apwil 1, 2019 883 8.63
Fa-assification adjustment 0.20 a30
~setinng 673 673
Irsaasals - -
Taance as at March 31, 2020 15.66 15.66
=3¢ TI0ns 2475 2425
Tonasals - -
Jatmce a5 @t March 31, 2021 39.91 3091
Emvortizatlon
Jaigrie as at April 1, 2019 268 268
Fa— assification adjustrment 120 130
A2 0N - 413 4.13
Jizzzsals ~ ) T
Talanta as at March 31, 2020 - .11 B.11
“aTTons .09 2.00
sEazals + >
Azance as at March 31, 2021 17.11 17141
et Dlock
& March 31, 2020 168 7.55
4r March 31, 2021 22.80 22.80

Noates

| Tremare ng pending contractual commitments to he executed CI;I'I capital ageoynt.
4 Jureg the previous year, some ol the ascets were reclassified as office equipment and intangible assets Irom furniture & fixtures ang computers.




=

A

DM Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In miligns, unless atherwise stated)

Other non- financial assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Zzpital advance 6.13 9.14
=repald expenses £8.99 46,10
2alances with statutory / government authoritias 693 55.30
Z2lerred rent expenses 0.10 0.10
Zther non-finangial assets 112 243
Total 103.27 11287
Assats held for sale
Assets under settlement 189.85 185.85
189.85 189.85

Ttese assets represent assets acquired from the Holding Company
“omapny had entered intg settlement agreement as a prudent measure by the management whearein the borrower was approached and there was a
—utual cansensus between the Holding Company and borrower ta transfer the asset in the name of the Holding Company towards settlement of the lgan
Fmount.

Trade payables

“=tal outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smali Enterprises * 110.75 78.68
Tal outstanding dues of Creditors other than Wicrg Erterprises and Senall Enterprises 195.23 164.55
Total 305.98 243.23

" Details of total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises are as follows:
———a715 0F lotal outstanding due
As at As at
niculars

_Pa March 31, 202t March 31, 2020
e principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid te any supplier as at tha end of each 110,75 7868
#counting year, ' ’
Tre amount of interast paid by the buyer in terms of SECLiOoNn 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts -

=* the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day duri ng each accounting year.

TRe amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but

=eyond the appointad day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSIMED A¢ L,

2006,

The amount of interest aceryed ang remaimng unpaid at the end of sach accounting year, . -
The amaunt of further interest remaining due and payahle even In succaeding years, untii such date when the -

=~terest dues as above are actually pald ta the smali enterprise for the purpose of disallowanes 35 2 deductible

“woenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

~

Debt securities {at amortised cost)

Mon convertible debentures (refer note 17.1) 18,551.69 20547.57

Zationally convertible debentures {refer note 17.3] - 2,250.00

18,551,69 22,792 57

Secured ** 498,60 4,744.57

-nsecurad 18.053.00 18,053.00
Tatal 18,551.69 22,297.57

Zebt securities in India 18,551 69 22,797.57
Zzbt securities outside india g -
Tatal 18,551.69 22,797.57

sacured against exclusive floating tharge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Graup of Rs. 725 milllons (previeus year Rs. 7,620.21
= llions),
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DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021
{All Ameunt in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

18 Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Secured™
Term loans

Fram banks 1L181.19 182483
Liabilities agalnst leased ascets 242.29 266.45

142348 3,091.28

Borrpwings in India 1,423.4% 3,091.28
Borrowings outside Indla - =
Total 1,423.48 3,091.28

*Secured against exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Group to the extent of Rs. 2,397.07 millions (Previous
sear: Rs. 4,651,98 millions).

Terims of repayment of borrowings as on March 32, 2021 are as follows:

Lender Repayment Rate of interest Security cover Outstanding as on | Outstanding as on
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020

=JFC Bank 16 quarterly 2e%<12% 133% 56.21 131.0a4
Installments

-ZFC Bank 12 monthly =6%<12% 133% E 186.70
installiments

42tak Mahindra Bank 12 quarterly =% 2% 133% - 49.94
installiments

.=on Bank of India 14 guarterly FBH<12% 133% - 248.35
instaliments :

~=an Bank of India 14 quarterly »6%<12% 133% 2717 354,04
installments

4. 3mal Finance Bank 36 monthly >6% 1 2% 110% 0492 162,22
tnstaliments

=_ Zmall Finance Bank 36 manthly »6%<12% 11084 - 191.21
instalirnents

Zr.01 Indian Bank 14 quarterly »RHe129% 123% 25.61 17084
installments

—e i Vilas Bank- (i 12 quarterly % 12% 132% - 166,02
installments

Sz« »f Baroda-| 16 quarterly =R 1 2% 133% I 434,33 737.18
installments

=7+ >f Baroda-2 16 nuarterly 6% 12% 133% 49705
installnznts

—==2. 3 Leyland Finance 36 monthly >6%e12% 110% - 42727
installments

=~ ] 7 monthly 6% 12% 125% 2000 =
mstallments

Total 1,181.1% 1,824.83




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes ta the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amount in Rs, In millions, unless otherwlse stated)

13 Otherfinancial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due

- Debt securities

- Borrowings other than debt securities
Expenses payabis
Other financial liabities

20 Pravisions
Pravision for gratuity
Provision for compensation absencas

. Other non-financial liabitilies
Statutory dues payable
Others*

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020

156.43 215,41
0.67 6.34

95.55 69.20
382,68 197.92
635.33 488.87
2324 17.46
3427 21.08
57.51 38.59
44.73 42.58
292.54 174.69
337.27 217.27

" include processing fee refundable to channel partners, advance recaived from borrowers and amount collected from

Jorrowers as Debt service reserve account {DSRA}.
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OMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consclidated Finangial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share ¢apital
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amaunt No. of shares Amount
Autharizad share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 96, 50,00, 004 9,650.00 ©6,50,00,000 9,650.00
Compulsorily convertible preferenca shares of Rs. 10 sach 3,501,00,000 350 00 3,50,00,000 350.00
1,00,00,00,000 10,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 10,900.00
Issued, subs<ribed #nd paid up
Fully called-up and pafd-up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 64,20,35,533 6,420 36 55.89.79.166 5.589.79
Sub total (A} 64,20,35,533 6,420.36 55,89,79,166 5,589.79
Partly called-up and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each 5,73.15.400 16.22 57215400 3.15
Sub total [B) 5,73,15.400 1£.22 573,15 ap0 3.15
Total [ar8) £9,93,50,933 6,436.58 61,62,94,566 5,592.94

The reconclliation of equity shares eutstanding at the beginning and at the gnd of the reporting year

Balance at the beginning of year 61,62,94 566 5592494 52,09,57,897 5,200.58
Shares issued during the year 8,30,56,367 83057 7,52,79,865 18179
Shares issved pursuant to conversion of compulsorily convertible preference - . 2,00,56,804 20057
shares

First call money called on party paid up shares = 13.07 - -
Balance at the end of year 69,93,50,933 6,436.58 61,62,94,566 5,592.94

Shares held by holding Compaiy

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares % holding Ne. of sharas % holding
DM Limited 51,98,89,603 74.34% 43,89,79,922 71.12%
51,98 89,602 74.34% 43,89,39 933 F1.22%

A5 per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ membets and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding repr esents both legal and benefirial ownarships of shares -

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Nare of the shareholder As ot March 31, 2021 As at Mareh 31, 2020
Mo, af shares % holding Ma. of sharas % holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 2ach fully paid up

DI Linnited 51,02 25 503 74.34% 43,89,39922 FL22%
NIS Ganesha 5.4 6,47.35 441 9.26% 6.47,35.441 10 50%
KW jrefer (i} below) 5,73,15,400 8.20% 5,73,15.400 9.30%

Note: Ag per recards of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharehelders regarding beneficial
interest, the sbove shareholding represents both (agal and beneficial own erships of shares : .

-
During the previous year, 57,315,400 equity shares of Rs. 10 each issved on parthy-paid up basis where subseription amoynt being received on allotment was Re 32,11
millions as paid up value of Rs. 0.56 per share inclusive of premlum of R 0.51 pet share calculated propartionately. Further during the current year, the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company made the first call of ks 2.32 aer equity shares (including Rs. 2.09 per share on arcount of securlty premium) on 57,315,400 patthy paid equity
shares. Accordingly, the Holding Company recelved an amaunting to Rs. 133,13 million.

During the current year, the Holding Campany has issued 23,056,367 equ ity shares tomprising of #0,942,631 of Rs. 10 per share 2t Rs. 116,36 per share {including premium
of Rs. 106.36 per share} and 2,106,686 equity shares of Rs. 10 per share at R 113.34 per share {including Rs. 103.34 per share]. The amount receivad on these ksuas
aggregates to Rs. to Rs, 9,658.08 million.

The Holding Company had issued 2,7783,195 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {“CCPS™) namely Series B, Series C, Serias D, Series E, Series F and Series G te
different holders from time to time. As per the terms of issue of CCPS, the CCPS were converted Into 2,00,56,804 ardinary equity shares of the Company on Novermnber 8,
2019. R

Rights, preferences and cestrictions

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shara is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend
propased by the Board of Directors is subject ta the approval of the shaieholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguithation of the Holding
Campaniy, the holder of equity shares will be entitied tg receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by the shareholders

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the five yadrs

The Holding Company has not issued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash nor allotted as fully paid up by the wiy of bonus shares and
there has not been any buy back of shares in the current period and \he immediately preceding four vears

(1




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

&8 Other equity

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Securities premium 23,495.35 14,547.77
Capital redemption reserve 2121 8121
Statutory reserve u/s 45-1C of RBJ Act 97745 932.34
Share option outstanding account 140,95 66.58
Retained earnings 3,931.60 3,701.95
Tetal 28,626.57 19,330.35

Security premium
Securities premium represents premmium received on issue of shares. The amount is utilised in accardance with the provisions of tha Companies
Act 2013

Capital redernption reserve
The same had been created in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 on buy back of shares

Statutory reserve u/fs 45-1C of RBI Act
The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45 (IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This is a restricted reserve and no appropriation
can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of India,

Share option outstanding account
The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the aptions issued to employees of the Company and subsidiary companies under Holding

Company’s employee stock optlon plan, P =

MUMBAT )




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
(AN Amount in Rs. In millians, unless otherwise stated)

On financial assets On financlal assets  On financial assets

24 lntfrest in¢come
¥ear ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020
On financial assets

measured at Measured at fair measured at measured at fajy
Amortised cost value threugh OCI Amortised cost value through OCr
Interest on portfaka Inang £,394,70 1835 5.741.30 647
Interest an investments 292,64 175,85 18257 155.58
Interest on deposits 34.94 - 6.49 -
6,722,328 194.21 5,930.36 162.05
Total interest income 6,916.49 6,092.41
25  Fees and tommission income Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Commission an carg refoad 18.48 4528
Others 62.91 50.19
81.39 95.47

26 Met gain on fair value changes

Net gain on financial instruments at fair vaiye through profit and loss
Investments 587.60 225,65
587.60 225.65

Analysis of fair value cha nges
Realised 355.03 209.02

Unrealised 232.57 16.63
Total 587.60 225.65

27 Other income

Cost sharing from Broup companies 10338 89.61
Miscellaneous income 0.36 0.32
Total = . 103.74 89.93

22 Finance costs

Intarast
QN non convertible dobentyres 1,699.45 952.03
- on bank term loan 14175 336.28
- on bank cash credit 0.32 10.42
- on delayed deposit of statutory dues 0.81 0.20
- on leasing arrangements 24.54 20.86
Other barrowing ensts 63.17 75.25
Total e 1,930.04 1,455.04




29  Fees and comrnission expense

Selling partner commission

3 Impairment on financial instruments

Loans
Investments
Write offs
Tatal

L Employee henefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus
Cantribution to provident and other funds
Share based payment to employses
aff welfare expenses

T=tal

Tecrectation and amortization
Iegweciation on property, plant and equipment
«==tisation of intangible assets

e expenses

“owetaement expenses

== and professional fees

o and conveyance expenses
“ooor s remuneration (refer note 33.1)
Fmgenies

== and taxes

< sitting fee
e spcial responsibility (refer note 33,2}
oo awd maintenance
s expense
: =uation fee

- pnboarding expenses
S EDUS EKPEDNSES

DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 21, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

903.63

843.03

903.63

843.03

BELIEALAY

Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020
On financial On flnancial On financial On financial
instruments instruments Instruments. instruments
measured at fair measured at measured at fair measured at
value through Other  Amortised cost  walue through Other  Amartised cost
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Income Income

0.75 651.95 1.65 779.72

98.31 295.86 7172 43.48

- 1.801.87 - 631.58

99.06 2,749.68 73.37 1,459.78

2,8a8.74 1,533.15

578,70 496.73

30.25 1468

7578 40.90

18.44 15.09

703.27 $77.40

70.12 7235

2.00 4.13

79.12 76.48

18.67 13.30

382.68 195.16

+ 4.42 28.67

424 3.98

- 145 .65 90.94

1.55 2.46

1265 851

0.56 0.16

259.15 23.34

7.30 12.29

0.10 004

11607 3549

205 910

228 12.88

179.95 221.52

903.32 657.82




DMI Finance Private Limited

MNotes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All Amount in Rs. In millfons, unless otherwise stated)

33.1 Auditor's remuneration (excluding appllicable taxes) Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- as auditors 3.05 .79
- for tax services 0.03 0.29
- for other services 1.16 0.88
4.24 3.96

33.2 Corporate social vesponsibility (C3R)
In respect of Corporate Social Responsibility activities, gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year was Rs. 25.15
millions in FY 2020-21 {Previous Year Rs, 23.34 millions) and Group has spent Rs. 25.15 millions in FY 2020-21 {Previous Year Rs. 23.34

3q

millions],
For the year ended March 31, 2021 Amaunt spent Amount unpaid Total
Constructionfacquisition of any asset - - -
On purpose ather than above 2515 25.15
For the year ended March 31, 2020 Amount spent Armount unpaid Total
Constructionfacquisition of any asset - - -
On purpose other than above 23.34 - 23.34
Earning per share {EPS} Year ended March  Year ended March
31, 2021 31,2020
Net profit attributable to equity shargholders 269.28 1,022.22
MNet profit for the year for basic EPS 269.28 102222
Dilutive impact of convertible instruments - -
Net profit for the year far dilutive EPS 269.28 1,022.22
Mominal value of equity shares {in Rs.} 10.00 10.00
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basis EPS 63,55,50,623 55,60,99,064
Effect of dilution
Convertible instruments 28,00,93¢6 22.00,936
Waighted-average numher of equity shares for dilutive EPS 69,64,77,457 95,89,00,000
Basic EPS 0.42 1.84
Dilutive EPS (.35 1.83




DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

35 Retirement benefit plan

Pefined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is 2 pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of the Group in a fund under the cantral of trosteas

The total expense charged to income during the currert year Rs, 8.34 millions (previous year: Rs, 6.85 millions) represents contributions payable to these
plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plan

Defined benefit plan

The Group has 3 defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five yvears or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

Frovision for unfunded Gratuity for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every linancial year. Major drivers in
actuarial assurnptions, typleally, are years of service and employee compensation. Pursuant to the issuance of the Indian Accounting Standard {IndAS) 18
on ‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Frojected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial
assumptions are accounted for in the "Other comprehensive Income™.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts
recognited in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Changas in the defined benefit obligation: As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 17.46 8.56"
Current service cost 7.06 6.25
Interest Cost 1.17 0.67
Remeaturement (galn) J loss [2.45]) 1.9%
Balamce at the end of the year 23.24 17,46
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss Is as under: Year ended ¥ear ended
_ March31,2021  March 31, 2020
Current service cost 7.06 625
Interest cost an defined benefit obligation 117 067
Net impact on profit before tax 8.23 6.92
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income: Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2021 31, 2020
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 10.01)
Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial assumptlons |0.01} 2.10
Experience adjustments 12 44} 1011}
Impact on other comprehensive income (2.45) 1.98
.
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-cmployment banefit obligations for the cti[npan\."s plans are shown below:
Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Economic assumptions

Discount rate 6.76% 6.76%,

Future salary increases 6.00% G000

Demagraphic assumptions
Retirement age o0 60
Martality rates inclusive of provision for disablity 100% of |ALM {2012- 100% of IALM [2012-

14] 141
Alfrition at ages {withdrawal rate]
[ijupta 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
[if} From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
iii} &bove 44 years 1.00% 1.00%

Note: The discount rate is generally based upon the market vields available on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit
payments far a term that matches the llabilities. Salary growth rate s Company’s long term best estimate a5 to salary increases and takes account of
inflation, senigrity, promotion, business plan, HR policy and other relevant factors on long term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard,




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs, In millions, unless otherwize stated)

Sensitivity analysls for gratuity liability Year ended Year ended
" —March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % {1.78) [1.35)
Impact due to decrease of 0,50 % 1.94 1.50
Impact of the change in salary increase
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.85 151
Impact due to decrease of (.50 % {1.78) i1.36)

The following is the maturity profile of gratuity:

Expected payment for future years As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Oto 1year 0.32 0.24

1to 2year 0.37 .20
Ao 3year 0.37 0.30

3to 4 year Q.40 030
4105 year 0.41 0.3
5to Gyear 0.39 0.30

6th year onwards 2097 1581  »
Total expected payiments 23.23 17.46
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Motes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amountin Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

37 Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indian Accounting Standard {Indas) - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures

" {a) List of related parties

Holding company
BRI Limited

Associate
DM Alternatives Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
DM Consumer Credit Private Lirnited
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

Key managerial personnel [KMP)

Name

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee
Mrs, Bina Singh

Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee
Mr. Gurcharan Das

M. Gaurav Burman

Mr. Tamer Amr

Mr. Nipender Kochhar
Mr_Jatinder Bhasin

Mr. Krishan Gapal

Mr. Sahib Pahwa

Relatives of KMP
Mrs. Mallika Singh
s, Promita Chatter|ae

undertaken;
K2VZ, Partnership Firm
DM Alternative Investment Fund

{l} Signlficant transactions with related parties:

Designatinn

Jaint tManaging Cirector

Joint Maraging Director

Director

Director

Directar

Director

Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer {uptc 17 March 2021)
Chief Financial Officer fw.e.f. 18 March 2021)
Company Secrotary

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

DMI Alternative Investment Fyund

OMI Altermatives Private Limited

Cost share recoyery

Share bazed payment L
nterest on igan

Repayment of laan

Reimbursement of expense paid by

related party on behalf of entity

Repayment of loan
Interest enpanses

Cost share rec avery
Share based payment

7018
2.16
20.78
700.00

800.00
23.75

3345
0.74

64,44
3.92

0.98

2517
155




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2021
{All Amount in Rs, mn millions, unless otherwige stated)

Name of related party Nature of transaction Forthe year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
OMI Lirnited

Transter of Compu Isory Convertibla - 217
Debentures
Issue of equity shares 941931 1,714.63
M, Sahit Pabwy Loan / advance glven 0.48 0.57
Interast income 0.05 0.06
Remuneration 412 403
Loan receiveqd back a.09 a.08
Mrs, Bina Singh Transfer of Compulsery Convertibie - 247
Debantures
Sitting fee Q.10 0.06
MF, Yuvraja Chana kya Singh Remuneration 57.10 57.54
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36
Issue of equity shares 119,29 -
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee Remuneration 56.28 56.08
Past employment benefits 0.36 0.26
Issue of aquity shares 119.39 -
Mrs, Jayati Chatterjee Sitting faag Q.18 0.16
Mr. Gurcharan Das Sitting fees 010 006
Mr. Nipender kochhar Sitting fess D.16 0.16
Mr. Jatinder Bhasin Remuneration * 10,92 12,58
Mr. Krishan Gopal Remuneration 067
Kavz Issue of equity shares 13313 2.1

{c) Outstanding balances with related parties:
Name of related party Nature of transaction As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rl
Mr. 5ahih Pahwa

Loan receivable A 048 057
-
DM Housing Finance Private Limited Loan payahle - 700.00
OMi Alternative Investrnent Fund Loan payable - 800,00
DM! Alternatives Private Limited ESCQP 489 4.15
Others

During the Year ended March 31, 2021, the Holding Company has bought back certain non convertible debentures from My, Sahib Pahwa for
consideration of Rs 0.64 millions [previoys year: Nil)

During the Year anded March 31, 2021, the Holding Company hag bought back certain non convertible debentures from DI Housing Finance Private
Limited for consideration of Rs 126 48 milkians {previous year: it}
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes t¢ consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All Amountin &s, In millions, unless otherwise stated)

38 Impact of COVID 19 pandemic

40

The COVID-19 pandermic has continued to cause a significant disruption of the economic activities across the globe includirg India throughout the year,
with second wave of the pandemic emerging towards the later part of the financial year in India, The Government of India anhounced a nation-wide
lockdown 1o contain the spread of the virus which continued til] May 31, 2020, Subsequently, various state governments and local statutory authorities
impased restrictions on economic activities in different parts of the country which continued to impact Halding Company’s operations including (ending
and collection activities, Further, pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India {"RBI') COMID-19 Regulatary package issued vide circulars dated March 27, 2020
and May 23, 2020 which allowed lending instituttons to offer moratorlum to borrowers on payrment of Instalments falling due between March 1, 2020
and August 31, 2020, and consequently the Holding Company had offered a moratorium to its eligible borrowers until August 31, 2020.

In assessing the impairment allowance for loan portfolio, the Holding Company has considered internal and external sources of information available
including indicaters of deterioration in the macro-economic factors, Further, the management has estimated the impact of the ongoing second wave of
the pandemic on its loan portfolio, based on reasonable and supportable information available till date and considering performance after the first
wave, and has noted that the existing provisioning levels are adequate to cover any further dellnguencies. Glven the unique nature and scale of this
pandemic, its full extent of impact on the Holding Company’s operations and financlal metrics, more specifically an the borrower's ability to service
thelr ohligations on a timely basis, will depend ot the severity and duration of the pandemic as well as on highly uncertain future developments
including governmental and regulatory measures and the Holding Company's responses thereto. Accordingly, the management’'s estimate of
impalrmaent losses based on various varfables and assumptions could result in actual cradit loss being different than that heing astimated.

The Holding Company has assessed the impact of the pandemic on it5 liguidity and ability to repay its obligations as and when they are due. The
Holding Company has considered its current liquidity position, expected inflows from various sources of borrowings and stimulus packages announced
by the Government of India, Based on the foregoing, management beiieves that the Holding Company will b able to pay its obligations as and when
these become due n the forateeable future, The impact of the pandemic on the operations of the Holding Company I3 significantly dependent on
uncertain future econamic conditions.

In accordance with the CoVID-19 Regulatory Packages announced by RBI on March 27, 2020, Aprll 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020, the Halding Company
has offered moratorium on the payment of instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 01, 2020 and Avgust 31, 2020 to
eligible borrowers, For such accounts that were granted moratorium, the prudential assets classification remained standstill during the moratorium
period {i.e., the number of days past due excluded the moratoriumn period for the purpeses of asset classification under ncome Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning Norms).

Further, on August 6, 2020, the Reserve Bank of India announced Resolution framewark for Covid related stress for parsonal loans, other eligible
exposures and MSMEs {Resolution Framework 1.0) and further an May 5, 2021, Resolution Framewark 2.0 was announced by RBI. On the basis of
eligibility criteria defined by REI in Resolutlon Framework 1.0 and 2.0, the Halding Company gave the benefit of restructuring the lean account to
borrowers with total loan outstanding amounti ng ta Rs 2,778.92 Millions.

Interest on interest

In accordance with notification no. RBI/2021-22/17 DCR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated April 7, 2021 issued by the REI, Il lending stitutions
shall refund/adjust ‘interest on interest’ to all borrowers including these wha had availed working capital facllities during the moratorium period,
irrespective of whether maraterium had been fully or partially availed, or not availed. Purs uant to these instructions, the Indian Banks Assaciation {1 BA}
in consultation with other industry participanis/bodies published the methodology for Ralculation of the amount of such ‘interest on interest’,

Accordingly, the Holding Company has estimated the sald amount and made pravision for refundladjusf?ﬁent in these standalone financial statements,
-

Ouring the current year, In compliance with Scheme for grant of ex-gratia payment of difference between compound interest and simple interast for six
months to berrowers In specified loan accounts (March 1, 2020 to Augut 31, 2020 }, the Holding Company granted the hanefit amodnting to As. 5947
millions to its barrowers.

L ;
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DM! Finanee Private Limited
MNotes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Capitat
The Holding Company aclively managas Its capital base to cover nsk inherent to its business ang meets the capltal adequ acy requirements of the regulatar, Raserve Bank of
India (RE}.

{i] Capital mamagement:
Obfertive

The Holding Company's objective i ta malntain apprapriate loyels of capital to support its business stratepy taking into account the regulatory, econornle and commercial
environment, The Holding Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to supiport the risks Inherent to its business and its growth strategy. The Holding Company
endeavors to maintain a higher capital hase than the mantdated regulatory capital at ol times.

Planning

The Haolding Company's assessment of capital requirement ts aligoed twaits planned Erowth which farms part of an annual operating plan which iz approved by the Board and
also a fang range strategy. These growth plans are aligned to assessment of risks- which include oredit, liquidity anil interest rate.

The Holding Company endeavors to malntain its Capital Rigk Adiquacy Ratio (CHAR) higher than the mandated regulatory norm. Atcordingly, increase in capital fs planned
wedl In advance 1o ensure adequate funding for its growth,

{ii) Regulatory capltal

As 5t March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
Tier 1 CRAR 59.03%; 43.21%
Tier 2 CRAR 137% 0.62%
Total CRAR 60.20% A4.00%

In case of un-dishursed ioan facility, the Holding Company has sole and absolyte discretion to allow ar reject any further dr awdaown fequest. Hence, undrawn commitment far
the Rolding Company ara amounttng to Mil, o

The CRAR is computed a5 per the Master Direction - Non Banking Finaneial Company - Systematicalty tmportant Non-Deposit taking Company and Depasit taking Company
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 réad with the ¢ireular issued by Reserve Bank of India on March 13, 2020.

in arder ta achieve this overall objective, the Holding Cormpany's capjtal management, amongst other things, gims 1o ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-hearing loans and borrowlngs. Breaches in Mmeeting tha financial covenarits would permit the bank to immediately calt loans and borrowings.

Nerchanges were made in the objectives, poficies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

Contingent llabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilitics

The Holding Company has given corporate guarantees to banks aganst different facihties to its fellow subsidiary DM Housing Finance Prwvate Limited of ks 4,447 17 milli ans
as at Mareh 31, 2021 {March 21,2020: ps, 5,474.59 milions),

During the year, the Holding Company has received an assessment order for FY 2016-17 whereln the assessing officer has made an addition for an amount of fs.6.42 millions
an account of disallowance of dedurtion under section 806G of the Income-tax Act, 1961 The Holding Company has appealed betore Commissionsr of Income Tax-Appeal
(CITIA)) against the oidar. This disallowance has resultad into an additional demand of Re. 2.26 million but the Halding Company has already paid the taxes more than by s,
231 million therefare, the Holding Company is not required to pay any additiwonal demand, 1n nresence of favarabile case laws and judicial precedents wherein similar facts
have baen addressed, the Holding Company expects that the additional demand will be deleted by CIT {A).

Commitments
In case of un-disbyrsed loan facillty, the Holding Company has sale and absolute discretion to allow or rejact any further drawdown request, Hence, undrawn commitment for
the Holding Company are amouating ta Ml B

Reconciliation of liabilities avising from financing activities

o
Particulars Debt securities darrowings ather than Liability sgainst leased Tatal
debt securities assets

April 1, 2019 5,782,328 4,138 .86 - 992114
Adaption of Ind &5 115 - - 293 91 9391
Cash flows: )

- Repayment {4,300 003 {2,314 54) (54 20} [6,669.34)

- Procesds 21.303.00 28000 22,231.00
Mon-cash -

- Deferrernent / amortisation of upfront fees and other charges 12.29 2051 32.80

- Others 27,34 27.34
March 31, 2020 23,797.57 3,824,533 J6E.A5 25,883.85
Cash flows:

- Repayment 14,750000) {2.355.23) {55.18) [7.160,51)

- Procesds 500,00 F00.00 - 120000
MNon-tash )

- Deferrament / amertisation of upfront fees and other charges 412 1169 - 15,81

- Ctherg - 3102 2102

March 31, 202y 18,551.69 1,181.19 242.29 19,975.17




DML Finanee Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statemenits for the year ended March 34, 2021
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwise stated)

44 ledses

« The Holding Company has lease contracts for office and residential spacas taken on lease. The leasa terms are between 1 to 10 years.
The Holding Company alsehas certaln lease with [ease terms of 12 months or less, The Holding Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recoghition exemptions for these leases

The carrying amaounts of tight-of-use assets (ecognized and the movements during the periad are as follaws:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 248 67 -
Additians made during the year - 29391
Depreciation charge for the year 37.96 4524
Ralante i the end of the year 21071 24867
The carrying amounts of lease habilities and the movements during the period are as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 266.45
Additians rmade during the year z 293.91
Interest accretivn for the year 11,02 3734
Payments made during the year {55.13] (54.80)
Balance at the end of the year 24229 266.45
The effective interest rate far lease latdlities is 10%, with maturity ranging to 202728,
Thi fallowing are the amounts recognized in profit and loss =
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depraciation expense Ir respact of right-of-use assat 37.96 4524
Interast expense in respect of lease Habilities 24.54 2086
Expense refating to short-term leases (included on other expepses) 12.65 #51
75.15 74.61

|Tntat amaount recognised in profit or loss

The Holding Company’s tolal cash outflows for leases was Rs 48 70 Millians during year {previous year Rs 54.80 Millions)




DI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(all Amount in Rs. tn millions, unless otherwise stated)

45 Tax expenses
« The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 21, 2020 are

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax 348.13 553.10
Deferred tax credit (256.80) (176.24)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 91,33 376,86

The major components of tax expense and fts reconcillation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Group Is 25.168%
{March 31, 2020; 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows:;

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit before tax {before share of Brofit of associate) 321.10 1,360.54
Income-tax rate 25 168% 25.168%
Expected tax expense 80.81 342.42

r
Expenditure disallowed 465.68 35.69
income nat subject to tax {0.14) 26.46
Deductions {458.23) {28.99)
Short term capital gain - 1.28
Tax for earlier years 321 -
Tax expense 91.33 376.86

KUMEAI
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{All Amount in Rs. In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities:

DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Farticulars Within 12 After 12 months Total Within 12 After 12.months Total
manths months

ASSETS

Ftnancial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,53301 2,533,091 1,212.58 - 1,212.69

Bank balance other than cash and cash 167.21 267.21 15.20 - 15.20

equivalents

Trade receivables 62.11 - 62.11 39.96 29.96

Loans 16,971.61 14,442.00 31,413.63 18,347.05 15,006,465 33,353.51

Investments 15,718.40 283264 18,551.04 12,235 58 3,076.56 15,362.24

Other financlal assels 2,01%.08 025 2,037.35 542,41 2032 5562.73

Nan- financal assets

Current tax assets {nat) 23247 - 23147 170,07 - 170.07

Deferred tax assets net} . b3i3.87 b633.87 378.74 3rs. 74

Property, plant and equipment 46.26 280,66 226,92 34.26 353.38 387.64

Intanglble assets - 22.80 22.80 755 7.55

Other non- financial assets 94.56 861 103,27 112.87 - 112.87

Assets held for sale 189.85 189.85 189.85 1B9.85
38,133.57 18,240.84 56,374.41 32,957.04 18,843.01 51,800,05

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financial liabllities

Trade payables

(1) tatal outstanding dues of micra enterprises 110.75 110.75 7868 78.68

and small enterprises

(i} total outstanding dues of creditors other 195.23 195.23 164,55 164.55

than micra enterprises and small enter prises

Debt securities 18,551.6% 18,551.69 4,744 .57 13,053.00 22,791.57

Barrowings {other than debt securitias] 600,22 82326 1,423.48 147346 1,617.82 308128

Other financial liabilities 635,33 635.33 485.87 - 488,87

Non financial liabilities *

Provisions €751 87.51 38.54 38.54

Other non-financial fiabitilies 337.27 337.27 217.27 217,27

Equity

Equity share capital 5,436.58 6,436.58 5,592.94 5,592.94

Other equity - 2861657 28,626.57 19,330.35 19,330.35

1,836.31 54.438.10 56.374.41 7,205.94 44 504 11 54 800.05




DM Fimance Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financiai Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al Amountin Rs. In milllons, unless atherwise stated)

47 Risk managament
Introductian and vigk profile
In vizw of the intrinsic nature of operations, the Froup s ewpased to 3 variaty of ricks, which ean ba broadly elassified as liquidiny risk, eradit risk, interest rate risk and egulty price risk, It s
w250 subleck to varlogs regulatory risks.
Risk management struture and policlas
As it lending Institution, the Group 19 exposed tovarlous risks that ar= ralated 1o lending businass and operating environment. The Principisl Dbjective in Gioup 's risk management proceszes
i5 lo measure and monitor the varlsus risks that Group is subject to and Lo fallow policies and procedures to address such risks. Group 's rigk managemenl framework i driven by Baard and
It subcommittess including the Audit Committes, the Asuet Lialility Management Committee ard Risk Management Committes, Tha Group ghves due impartatice to prudent lending
practices and have implemented suitable measures for risk mitigatian, which inciude verification of credit history from eradit Infefrmation bureaus, personal werification of a customer's
buslhess and residance, technicat and legal verifications, consarvative Inan to valus,

{A) Lguidity visk
quuiclitt:r risk is the potential for Inss to an institution ariging fram elthat its ihability fo rmaet its ohligations ar 16 fund incressas in assets as they fall due without Incurring unacceptable eock
or lpsses
The Group manages fauidity sk by measuring =nd managing nat funding requirements. using a maturity lsdder and caleulation of cumulative surplus or deficit of funds at splected maturity
dates which has bieen ndopted as a standard togl, The Group's Assars.| 1ability Committee (ALCOY is responsilie for datermining the appropriate mix of available funding zources utilized 1o
ensure Company liguidity is snanaged prudsntly and shprapriately, With regard lo the process of Enuidity thanagement, ALCO also considers the urrent econammic and markat enviranmart,
hear-term loan growtn prafections and lang-term strategle business decisions.

The table below summarises the mat urlly profile of the undlscounted tash flows of the Group’s financia| assets and liabiliyes

March 31, 2021 upte Irnonth|  Over Over 2 Over? | Over6manths | Over Byaar to| Guer 3 years] Over 5 years nm|_1
Amenthto 2| months to 3 | months to 6 1o 1 year Iyears 0 F years
month months menths
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivatanty 255391 . - = . 253391
Bank balance-other than Cagh and cazh =quivalents . . 261,91 .30 - . 5701
Trade recelyables 62.11 - - - - - . 5211
Loans 411683 2,770.01 251207 E 766 6,300,733 15,486 83 3,364.92 78595 41,1190
Investments 1513810 48.00 563 32 108 14 188 15 737 38 1,77071 1440 20 15,953 0D
Other financial assuts 24723 1715 1,542 70 100,00 1.35 ER- X 1500 203738
Finaneial liabilities .
Trade payahles (.62 205 36 305.98
Debt securities . R212 £5.18 3@ 97 78117 21,171 39 2258992
Borrawings fethar than dabt secueitiss) e05 2551 150.18 154 58 28150 L5547 13128 - 1,376 33
Other financial liabilities 10050 140,74 S0.69 254,50 BE. 90 - - 635 33
'En:h 31, 1020 upta 1 manth rver Dver 2 Crer 3 Ower 6 manths | Over 1year to | Quer 3 years| Dver S yaars Total
imonthto 2| monthsta 3 | menthsta 6 to 1 year 3 years 16 5 years
= month months. ths |
Financial assats
Cazh and cash equivalznts 121269 = - . - 1,190,84
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 321 - - 1199 - - - 15.20
Trads receivables 3296 - . - - . E 3996
Loans 253384 211842 299118 6,648 71 3,331.45 14,22842 3,434.35 14B182 | 41,829.19
Investments 12151 83 29 90 7420 16300 35511 1,342.35 374.9¢ + 1,505 34 16,407 39
Qthar financlal assets 29728 - 167 18 B3 Gh .72 141 808 1083 568,73
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 353 - 15370 - - - 243.23
Debl securlties 9934 34177 1584 51" 148222 311137 523168 15,900 46 28,751 3%
Borrowings jother than debt securlties) 6887 184.22 207.04 43943 057 160271 . 3,272,090
|[Other financial llabjliti=s 93.18 15828 5773 111 36 67 25 - 3 482,37
{B) Credt risk *

Credit risk arises fram the potential that an obligor is wither urwilling ta perform on an obligation ar its sbility ta perform such obligation is Impaired resulting in economic lass te the Group.
The Group's ceadit fisk managoment framework is categorized (nta following main components:

- Senior management's dversipht

- Organizalional structure

- Systerns and proceduies for identification, wceNtance, Measurgment, monitanng and contralling nsit

It is the overall respanditility of the Graup's seninr management to npprove the Graup's credit risk strategy ahd lerding pialicjes relating to credit risk and its mansgement. The palicies are
based én the Group's aversll husiness Strategyand the same 15 reviewed svery quarter by the senlar managament

To maintain credit diseipline and ta snunciate credit risk management and control process there 5 a separata
management department perfarms the function of cradit palicy farmulation, ceedit limi setting, manitoring of

management departrnent independant of loan ariginaticn funetion, The rlsk
credit exceptions / exposures and review fmonitering of dac urentation,

The camrying smount of flnancial zssats Tepresenls the maximum cradit exposure

L |

BUBEA ; \
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Notes to consolidated Finangial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{8l Awount in Rs. In millions, unless otherwlse staled}

Analysis of sk congantration
The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the fnanoal assets of the Group:

tarch 31, 2021 financial |Gowernment | Real estate MEME Services & Rretail
SEIVIEES manufacturing

Othere I Tetal

Finangial asset
Cash and cash equrvalents 203391 . - - - - 253391
Bank balanea other than Cash and cash aqulvalents 26721 - . - - 267 21
Term loans - Corporale {contractual amaunt of laans) = = 9,047 64 2838 0B 0354 12,288 16
Term leans - Consumer loans [contractusl amount of loans] - - 43474 1568061 - 19,1244 3%
Trade recewables 747 - * - . 54 64 : 6211
Irvastments 16,072 26 - 1,048 GF 1,410.49 = 022 183504
| Other finencial assets _ ! - I BAGT b B 2,097.35
Total 18,880.85 | 10,095 71 43074 | 3,948.57 | 2146397 2139 | 5a,885.23
Warch 31, 2020 Financial | Government | Real estate MSME Serviess B Retail Others Tokal
services manufagtuning
Financial asset
Cash and cash aquivalzats 121259 - 7 . - = 1,213 69
Bank balance ether than {ash and cazh equivalents 1520 - : L E 1520
Tarm Loans- Corparatelconteactual armaunt of loans| 7,969.08 2860 3,17.2.00 GE2.56 E 11,652 24
Consumer Loans{contraclual amount of loans) - 638 42 . 0,862 35 . 21,501 27
Receivables - - 3365 - 3996
Investments 1,095.73 - 1,239.74 . 1917 15,362 24
Other financial assets = 7 T 54565 2104 56273
Total 9064RL | &67.00 451174 | 2212735 40.71 | 50,553.33
Market risk

Market rick is the risk that the galus of an and off-balance shaet psibans of a tinancial institutian will be adversely affected by movamants in market rates or prices guch az interast (ates,
foreign exchange rakes, equity prices, credit sproads and/or conmmedity prices resulting in a loss to earnmgs and capiral

Financial instilutions may be axposed ta market risk in varizty of ways. Warked risk sxposura may be explicl in partfolias of securmies [ equities and instrumants rhat are actvaly traded
Corversely it may be implicit such as interest rale rizk due to mismaleh of loans and deposits. Besrles, market risk may also arise from actlvities categonized as ofl-balance shaet item
Tharefore, markel risk is potential for loss rasulting fram adverse movement in market risk factars such B3 interest rates, forex rates, equity and commodity prices.

The Group's exposurs to market risk is prrrarily on agcount of Interestrate nsk and eguity pnce risk,

Total market risk exposure

Particulars _ As at harch 3?, 021 A 3t Waech 31, 2020 | Primary rish sensitivity
ASSETS

financial assets

Invastments {Other than cradit substitutes) 18,734 g5 15,104 51 |Equily pice

Credit substitutes a1 ta 36020 [Intarest rate
LIABILITIES

Financlal liakllities

Dbl securities 18,351 6% 22,797.57 |Interesk role

| Barrowings fother than debl securitias) ——. = = 1423 43 309128

{il Interast rate risk:-
Interast rate fisk arises when thera is 3 mismatch between pasitlons, which are subject tp interext rate adjustment within a specified period. The Group’s lending, funding and investment

ctivities give rise to interest rate nsk. The immediste impact of variation in inlerast rate ls on the Group’s netinterest incnme, while a lang tefm impact is on the Greup’s nat worth singe the
econgmic valua of Lhe azsals, labllitks 2nd ofi-balance sheet exposures are affected While assessing interest rate risks, slgnals glven 1o the market by REl and government dapartmenls from
lirne to timne and the financial industry’s reachion to them shall be cantinuously monitared

Dua ta tha very natura of financing, the Greup s sxposed to moderake to g her nteresl rata risl. This risk has a major impact on the balance sheet az well a5 the income staterment 3f Lhe
Group. Interest rata nzk anizes due to!

] Changses in regulatory or market conditions affecting the interesi rates .

u Short term volatility .

] Prepayment rlsk translating into a reinvestment risk ,ﬁ.
3] Feal interest rate rizk

Interest rate sensitinity

The follguring table demonstrates the sensitivily t9 @ reasonably possible change in Interest rates {all olher variables Lieing constanth of the Group's statement of profit and lass:

E“&“‘_ . Effect on net profh

Borrowings For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020

Decrease m 50 baus polnis 7 o4 18 55

Increase In 50 basis points {7 34} (12551

Particulars = —  Effert on net profit

Barrowings For the year ended Forthe year ended
tlarch 31. 2021 March 31, 2020

Dacrense in 50 basis poinls 1512

Increase in 50 basis paints RALNE]]

ii) Equily price risk

Eq]uit\r price risk |s the pitk that the fair value of equities changes as the result of changas 1 the level of equily indlces and ndividual slocks A 10 per cent increase in the value of the Group’s
FVOC equitles 3t 31 March 2021 waubd have increased equity by Rz 136 90 millinns {Previous year: Rs 188 29 millans} An equivalent deerease would have resulted in am aquivalent but
opposite impagt. Further, A L0 par cant increase In the value of the Group’s FYTPL equities al 31 tarch 2021 would have increased profits by Rs. 149962 malhans {Previous yesr: Fs. 1,234 98
millighs] Anequialent decraace woold have resulted in an equvalent but opposite impact
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DMI Finanee Private Limited
Motes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All Amount In Rs. In milllons, unless otherwise stated)

ct on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at tair value of changes to key assumptions
- table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Group's level 3 assets and

tias,

h 31, 2021 Fair value of Level Yaluation technigue Significant unobservahle inputs —_—
3 assets !
ity shared in DMI Consurar Credit Private Limited 3.27 Net Waorth of Investee Company Instrument price
wty shares in Alchernist Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 226 20 Discounted Projected Cash Flaws Digcaunt margin / spread
onvertible debentures - Quoted 467 68 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount marghn f spread
wty shares in Flash Electrorics Private Limited 304.40 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price
woulsory convertible debeantures 826.47 Discounted Frojected Cash Flows Discaunt margin f spread
m-convertible debentures - unguoted 1423% Dbiscounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread
31, 2020 Fair value of Lavel Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
3 assets
wty shared in DMI Cons.—2r Credit Private Limited 316 Net Worth of Investoe Company Instrument price
wty shares in Alchemist Lsset Reconstruction Company Limited 226.20 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Diseount margin f spread
r
s-convertible debentures - Guoted 419.58 Discounted Projectad Cash Flows Discount margin f spread wtnd
shares in Flash Elactroniss Private Limited 250.19 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument price wred
mpulsory corvertible detenturas 77317 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discourt margin £ spread ance
anvertible debenturss - ungusted 12076 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount margin / spread Xher
nl of
stitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs and
ment price
= [he nature of this apprezch, there is ng range of prices used as inputs. ased
=unt margin/spreads 1 II'B
~unt margin/spreads raorasant the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads are ncial
>4 to the benchmark rate whan discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an ssset or increase the value o S0
. fiability. They generally rafiact the premium an Investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by the adin
-tainty of the cash Rows c2used by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiguid or complex f the
Jments, aled
wges
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DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2021
{all Amount in Rs. In mi liions, unless otherwise stated)

- Sensitivity of fair value Measurements to changes in unobservable market datg
The table below deseribes the effect of 4 10% maovem

entin the significant unobservable inpyr.
All changes, except for financial instruments at FVOC|

would be reflected in Statements of Profit and Loss,

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. Favourable Unfavourahle Favourahble
Particulars

Unfavourable

changes thanges changes changes
Instruments measwred thraugh FYTOCT

Equity shared in DM) Consumer Credit Private Limited

0.33 {0.33) 0.32 {0.22)
Equity shares in Alchemist Asset Recanstruction Company Limited 26.07 {26.07) 22.62 {22.62)
Non-convertible debentures -Quoteg 7.17 {(7.17) 41.95 {41.96)
Mon-convertible debentures - unguoted 14.28 {14.29) 12.08 {12.08)
Equity shares in Filagh Electronics Private Umited 3044 {30.44) 25.00 {25.00)
Compulsory convertible debrentures 82.65 {82.65) 77.32 {77.32)
otal 160.94 {160.94) 179.30 {179.30) o
d
3ir value of financial instruments ngt measured at fair value - ]
=L out below is a compartson, by cass, of the CarTying amounts and fair valyas of the Group’s finaneiat instruments that are not carried at fair value in er
= financial stalements. This table does notinclude the fair yalyes of non~financial assats and non—financigl liabilities, of
nd
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ancial assets: Fair value Carrying value Fair value Carrying value
2ns and advances ad
Corporate loans 12,715.14 - 12,151.09 11,630.70 11,735 33 he
=Stments = at amortisad cost sal
‘an-convertible debentures - Queted 1,156.59 1,171.28 1,259,61 1,227.52 S0
ncial liabilities: iin
ot segurities 18,876.47 18,553.00 21,676.24 21,302.00 the
ited
ges
ation methodologies of finandal instruments nat measured at fair value
W are the methodologies and assumplions used 1o determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measurad
sit walue in the company’s financial statements, These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only, The below methodologies and
mptions relate onty to the nstruments in the above tables. _ (10)
owings - At Amortised cost . :‘:::
< includes Term Loans, The fair values of such liabilities are estimategd Using a discounted cash flow model based an tontractual cash flows using
2l or estimated yvields ang discounting by yields incorporating the tourtlerparties’ credit risk, Thasa instrument are classified in Leve] 3. hwlz?et
niles
iments - At ameortised cost rents
= Includes Quoted non convertible debenture & carporate loans, The fair values of such SITUMeEnts are Actimated using a discounted cash flow lence
based an contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and discaunting by yields Incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. Thege \atter
sment are classified in Leve| 3,

and Fabilities other than above

#Tying value of assets ang liabilities other than investments and borrowings at amortized cost represente 5 reasonable approximation of fair value

L E’Z{ as at
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